

Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. ABN 83 471 063 765

ANNUAL REPORT

2011 ~ 2012

57 Years Service to the Community



David 'Jack' Russell Silver Medal Over 45yrs Rescue Tube Race 2012 Australian Masters

Table of Contents

President's Report	5
Attendance at Committee Meetings	
Membership Statistics	
Financial Reports	
Club Captain's Report	
Vice Captain's Report	
Chief Instructor's Report	
First Aid Report	
IRB Report	
Team Manager's Report	
R and R Section Report	
Board and Ski Section Report	
Swim Section Report	
Beach Section Report	
Boat Section Report	
Junior Report	
Junior Competition Team	
Cadets	
New Inductees to the Hall of Fame	
Coolangatta Gold	
Clubhouse Report	
Senior Club Championships	
Masters State Championships	
Masters National Championships	
Point Leo Swim Classic	
Gary Tierney Foundation	
Point Leo SLSC Bobbas	
Sponsors and Supporters	
President's Trophies	
LSV Member Recognition	
Patrol Awards	
Competition Awards	46
Junior Awards	
Senior Club Champions	
Junior Club Champions	
LSV Nipper Awards	
Patrol Hours	47
Lifesaving Awards	49
Senior State Title Results	
Masters State Title Results	51
Junior State Title Results	
State Team Members	
Point Leo Swim Classic Results	
List of Members	

President's Report

The 2011/2012 season was another outstanding success for the Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club. The club had its most successful State Open Title result in living memory and our patrol function concluded with a successful season and no major incidents or traumas. 'Off' the water the club related functions and events were numerous and successful and they certainly contributed to the ongoing growth and respect the club currently enjoys.

In perusing last years President's report to members, I stated the club had a number of challenges it needed to address in order to progress. These 'challenges' were:

- The club required a new All Terrain Vehicle (Purchased and arrived in time for the start of the 2011/2012 patrol season)
- The club required a new patrol shelter (Purchased and arrived in time for the start of the 2011/2012 patrol season)
- Further storage area for our ever increasing club equipment (A second container was purchased and arrived during the current season)
- In the medium to long term, a full review and possible extension to our existing clubhouse facilities (A Building Review sub-committee was established during the course of the current season)

It is pleasing to note all four identified areas that presented as a challenge to us last season have been actioned: this is a great testament to the many members who have been involved over the course of the season in addressing these issues. Of course, as old challenges are made redundant, new ones appear. In the shorter term, the club requires its membership base to provide more qualified and specialised patrol awards across the board, we need to train and provide more club officials for the competition side and in particular the club requires more qualified and active IRB drivers.

The actual list of events, functions and community service the club has provided this season is again enormous and much detail about these will appear in the relevant sections elsewhere in this annual report. However, I would like to list some of these as a guide and reminder of the broad and vast great work the club does for the community, its youth and broader membership:

- Successful conclusion to our number one priority, the patrol season
- Annual Bronze camp (38 members attended this year)
- Annual regualification
- Point Leo Swim Classic
- Annual Point Leo Swim Camp
- Annual Point Leo Board camp on the Gold Coast
- Two grant recipients for the second year of the Gary Tierney Foundation (Victoria Roadnight and Tom McFarlane)
- Hosted a regional carnival
- Had solid representation at every carnival (Junior, Seniors and Masters) in Victoria this season
- Successfully managed the Junior Surf Lifesaving Program (Nippers) with some 464 nippers
- Had 177 nippers attend the State Titles at Lorne
- Had 58 senior competitors attend the State Titles at Anglesea
- Had 19 seniors and 3 masters attend the National Titles at Kurrawa, Queensland
- Won a National silver medal with David Russell's great tube swim in the Aussie Masters
- Held our second Hall of Fame Inductee evening. Congratulations to our three new worthy additions to the Point Leo SLSC Hall of Fame Simone Williams, Ian Knight and Khali Gooding (née Williams)
- Held numerous spit roast nights, a muso night, nippers functions and disco that saw hundreds of members, supporters and families have fun and engage with the broader club
- Continued to secure a number of major sponsors to assist and support the club financially
- Continued to invest in infrastructure gains for the club and its environs
- Worked closely with the Point Leo Foreshore Committee and broader community to provide a safe environment for all visitors to the Point Leo area

On a broader note, I am also pleased to report that the club remains in a sound position across all auspices it is measured against. The club is extremely stable from a financial perspective with its overall membership numbers at season's end at 947. The club has a solid and hardworking committee that continues to put in hundreds of hours of work behind the scenes. In my second year as President I would like to thank all of this

year's committee for their efforts, contributions and ability to 'get the job done'. I would also like to acknowledge the particular efforts of the club executive members Kim Williams, Andrew Gibson and Haydn Tierney. A great job everyone!

Moving forward, it is necessary that the roles within our committee continue to be spread between a broad base of the membership and I would encourage any member who is eligible for a committee role to consider taking on such a role. One of the future aspects of the club is the likelihood that in the years to come we will need to employ paid positions to manage the day to day affairs of the club and that our role and footprint within the Point Leo community will expand greatly. A strong, robust and active committee will be required to manage these coming challenges.

The club remains in a solid financial position, carries no debt and continues to maintain excellent relationships with its major partners such as Life Saving Victoria, the Point Leo Foreshore Committee and all of our various suppliers.

As President I have the difficult task of selecting worthy recipients of the Junior and Senior President's Trophies and the Dick Catterick Award. This year we had some stand out contributors within the club. Recipients this year are:

Junior Presidents Award: Victoria Roadnight

Senior Presidents Award: Jon Ford

The Dick Catterick Award: Andrew Welsh

These three members all manage and complete various club tasks throughout the entire season. They are great contributors and I thank them sincerely for their dedication and achievements over the past season.

On a sadder note, I would like to take the opportunity to extend on behalf of everyone from Point Leo SLSC our condolences and thoughts to the family and friends of Matthew Barclay. Matthew was a 15 year old Maroochydore member who tragically lost his life whilst competing at the Australian Titles at Kurrawa, Queensland this year. Some of our younger members knew Matthew and I would also like to extend my thanks to all Point Leo members who were at Kurrawa at the time of this incident who carried themselves magnificently under some distressing and difficult circumstances.

Looking ahead, I again encourage every member to consider what they can achieve for themselves and the club in the coming years. The club requires more active members and also requires those active members to obtain more SLSA qualifications. The basic requirements around fulfilling our patrol functions are becoming increasingly more complex over time and we need to ensure every patrol has a full suite of qualifications to ensure we provide the highest possible care and safety for ourselves and the public.

The 2011/2012 season has now concluded and it was a great year for the Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club. The next season and seasons to follow will only see Point Leo continue to grow in size, stature and respect within the surf life saving and broader community, but remember, we can only do it with the support and assistance of every member working hard towards common goals.

I would also like to extend a special thanks to all our club sponsors. The club is blessed to have a broad group of excellent sponsors that assist the club to provide its core function. I encourage every member to take note of our various sponsors (also note the sponsor's wall at the entrance to Wombat Alley) and support them where possible

Lastly, well done to everyone who contributed, assisted and helped out during the season. Whether it was emptying a bin, sweeping a floor, making a full written submission to LSV for a grant, driving equipment to carnivals, putting up a tent, organizing a dinner for 120 guests, driving members to patrol etc etc. A MASSIVE THANK YOU! One of the great aspects about this club is the multitude of members who are prepared to give their time and effort. There are so many of you it is impossible to list here. This is the lifeblood of a voluntary organization and without you we would not exist!

Please enjoy the 'off season' and I look forward to seeing everyone on the beach at Leo in 2012/2013.

GO LEO!! lan Knight Club President

Attendance at Committee Meetings

President	lan Knight	7	Vice President	Richard Ellis	5
Secretary	Andrew Gibson	9	Vice President	Tom Mollenkopf	5
Treasurer and Registrar	Kim Williams	10	Vice President	John Horwood	9
Club Captain	Haydn Tierney	7	Vice President	Khali Gooding	3
Senior VP	Marc Aliotti	6	Vice President	Blane Paton	8
Chief Instructor	Bree Ambry	2	Vice President	Tamara Brawn	5
Vice Captain	Jack Garner	5	Vice President	Max Jeffrey	7
First Aid	Simone Garner	2	Vice President	Steve Anstee	3
Radio Officer	Michael Treadwell	2	Vice President	Duncan Fraser-Smith	10
IRB Captain	Matt Bunting-Frame	6	Committee Member	Andrew Welsh	4
Team Manager	Stacey Lethlean	7	Committee Member	Luke Treadwell	2
JAB Coordinator	Julia O'Shaughnessy	6	Swim Captain	Lachlan Pearse	5
Cadet Co-ordinator	Jane Wilkins	6	Board and Ski Captain	Jon Ford	5
House Administrator	Steve Roadnight	8	Beach Captain		
Gear Steward	Alf Treadwell	8	Boat Captain	Phill Lyons	3
Mine Editor	Jacqui Horwood	0	Social Secretary	Mark Tierney	1

Ten (10) Committee Meetings were held for the year.

Membership Statistics

	200	8/09	200	9/10	201	0/11	201	1/12
Membership Category	М	F	M	М	F	F	M	F
Active Members (Junior and Senior)	86	67	68	62	74	67	89	63
Active Reserve	2	1	4	1	5	1	5	0
Cadets	48	41	37	33	37	42	37	47
Other (Life/Hon/Assoc/Long Service)	114	114	132	129	134	141	121	121
Junior Activity (Nippers)	<u>190</u>	<u>214</u>	<u>184</u>	<u>219</u>	<u>222</u>	<u>236</u>	<u>227</u>	<u>237</u>
Sub Totals	<u>440</u>	<u>437</u>	<u>425</u>	<u>444</u>	<u>472</u>	<u>487</u>	<u>479</u>	<u>468</u>
Totals	87	77	86	69	9	59	94	47

Financial Reports

POINT LEO SURF LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2012

2011		2012
	INCOME	
	Gifts	
16,500.00	Sponsorships	6,136.36
56,519.72	Gifts & Donations	82,773.61
36,545.00	GT Foundation	10,682.50
3,808.89	Grants	28,513.27
0.00	Subsidies	0.00
	Facilities	
4,901.82	Equipment	4,970.86
8,018.17	Club Rooms	4,545.46

	Fund Raising	
18,910.30	Pt Leo Swim Classic	14,091.73
17,595.37	Functions	5,287.79
10,766.09	Sundry	16,709.10
10,700.00	Memberships	10,700.10
24,990.98	Members	25,550.94
25,341.06	Nippers	25,863.72
5,609.02	Joining	4,818.18
3,449.09	50/50 Scheme	954.55
21,044.65	Competition	23,455.22
381.82	Award	0.00
20,804.30	Training Camps	13,131.86
30,319.75	Accommodation	30,340.59
11,012.72	Bar	12,531.72
8,608.42	Interest	14,139.14
59,441.93 12,436.43	Uniforms; clothing Equipment Levy - Nippers	61,920.26 12,713.61
6,295.20	Other	6,516.42
68.91	Profit (Loss) on Disposal of Assets	-1,084.28
00.01	Tronk (E000) on Disposal of A000to	1,004.20
403,370	TOTAL INCOME	404,562.61
	EXPENSES	
51,790.02	Accommodation	33,900.73
620.00	Accountant/Audit	690.00
995.89	Administration	1,126.87
614.43	Awards	4,295.47
1,418.79	Bank Charges	1,548.27
7,255.72	Bar Purchases	7,407.62
7,447.76	Cleaning	7,161.84
17,327.75	Club Repairs & Maintenance	10,440.37
1,046.61	Club Supplies & furnishings	573.60
15,282.59	Competition	12,983.95
12,215.00	Competition - Nippers	10,881.82
10,261.28	Competition - Equipment	2,008.92
46,868.00	Depreciation	46,413.00
453.64	Equipment Hire & Replacement	2,127.99
0.00	50/50 Equipment payments	1,318.18
0.00	Equipment Written-Off	6,546.00
316.68	First Aid	867.85
11,783.70 1,000.00	Functions GTF Grant	6,943.40
21.22	Information & Technology	3,000.00 1,196.19
14,695.29	Insurance	17,374.73
14,066.13	Nippers	8,387.41
6,842.60	Patrol	4,807.87
1,654.71	Postage & Delivery	783.23
951.47	Printing & Reproduction	548.64
923.61	Registration & Licences	569.13
9,697.15	Sundry	8,900.44
12,220.57	Swim Classic	12,744.18
15,508.57	Training & Development (incl equipment, Bronze & Star camps)	11,160.44
46,522.42	Uniforms	37,678.88
6,783.34	Utilities	7,133.16
316,585	TOTAL EXPENSES	271,520.18
86,785	NET PROFIT (LOSS)	133,042.43
726,461.80	Accumulated Funds brought forward	813,246.50
\$813,246.50	ACCUMULATED FUNDS	\$946,288.93

POINT LEO SURF LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 30TH APRIL, 2012

2011		2012
	MEMBERS' FUNDS	
	Reserves	
\$813,246.50	Accumulated Profits	\$946,288.93
	REPRESENTED BY:	
	CURRENT ASSETS	
	Cash at Bank	
27,851.47	- General Account	59,410.83
38,054.46	- ING Direct	0.00
52,000.63	- Gift Account	8,624.37
51,232.38	- Term Deposits	154,216.06
68,581.34	- GT Foundation	119,893.64
237,720.28		342,144.90
300.00	Cash on Hand	300.00
300.00	Cash on hand - bar float	300.00
22,907.82	Stock on Hand - clothing inventory	45,924.34
1,320.42	Stock on Hand - bar Receivables	733.42
9,725.00 1,427.59	Consolidated GST Accounts	0.00 498.88
1,427.59	Consolidated GST Accounts	490.00
273,701.11	Total Current Assets	389,901.54
	CURRENT LIABILITIES	
380.00	Bond on Equipment	380.00
0.00	GST Payable	0.00
380.00		380.00
273,321.11	WORKING CAPITAL	389,521.54
	PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT	
604,588.33	Buildings at cost	604,588.33
231,084.00	- Acc Depreciation Buildings	240,422.00
373,504.33	, too 2 optionation 2 and nigo	364,166.33
74,269.56	Furniture & Fittings at cost	74,026.56
33,657.00	- Acc Depreciation Furniture & Fittings	40,800.00
40,612.56	, too Boproolation Furniture a Fittings	33,226.56
202 702 70	Coor 9 Favir mont of coot	205 027 00
263,702.79	Gear & Equipment at cost	295,027.60
156,859.00	- Acc Depreciation Gear & Equipment	167,943.54
106,843.79		127,084.06
32,238.68	Gear & Equipment at Donor's Value	46,090.41
13,273.97	- Acc Depreciation Gear & Equipment - Donors	13,799.97
18,964.71		32,290.44
539,925.39		556,767.39
\$813,246.50	NET ASSETS	\$946,288.93

<u>POINT LEO SURF LIFESAVING CLUB INCORPORATED</u> <u>STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL 2012</u>

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 301	H API	2012 2012	2011
	Note	2012	2011
Cash flows from operating activities	INOLE		
Receipts from Donors, members & other Income		393,444	398,921
Payments to suppliers and employees		-259,877	-291,361
Interest received		14,139	8,608
Grants Received		31,342	4,168
GST (Paid) Refunded		2,184	-2,427
	_	_,	
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	2	181,232	117,909
Cash flows from investing activities			
Proceeds from Sale of Plant & Equipment		2,000	650
Payments for property, plant and equipment		-78,808	-32,663
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities		-76,808	-32,013
Cash flows from financing activities			
Proceeds from borrowings Repayment of borrowings			
Net cash provided by financing activities	•	0	0
	•		95 906
Net increase (decrease) in cash held Cash at beginning of the reporting period		104,425 238,320	85,896 152,424
Cash at the end of the reporting period	1	342,745	238,320
1. Reconciliation of cash			
For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and	in hanl	ke and investme	ante in
money market instruments, net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash at the end of			
shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related items in the bala			
Cash at bank - general account	arice 3	59,411	27,851
Cash at bank - general account Cash at bank - donations account		8,624	52,001
Cash at bank - ING Direct		0,024	38,054
Cash at bank - GT Foundation		119,894	68,581
Cash at bank - Grir oundation Cash at bank - Term Deposit		154,216	51,232
Cash at bank - Term Deposit Cash on hand			
Cash on hand - bar float		300 300	300 300
Casil off flatio - Dai float		342,745	238,320
	•	342,743	230,320
2. Reconciliation of Net Cash provided by Operating Activities to Operating F	Profit a	after Income Ta	ax
Operating profit (loss) after income tax		133042.43	86,785
Depreciation		46413	46,868
Loss on equipment written-off		6546	0
Loss (Gain) on sale of equipment		1084.28	-650
Increase (decrease) in GSTpayable (receivable)		928.71	-868
Change in assets and liabilities:			3
Decrease (increase) in Current Assets		-12704.52	-9,415
Decrease (increase) in Fixed Assets		5922.52	-5,190
Increase (decrease) in Sundry Creditors		0	380
Increase (decrease) in provisions		0	0
Net cash provided by operating activities		181,232	117,909

TAYLOR PARTNERS PTY. LTD. CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS ACN 006 597 235

R. MALE F.C.A. G. JAMES C.A.

OUR REFERENCE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF

POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC.

Scope

We have audited the attached special purpose financial report comprising the Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss Statement and Accompanying Notes of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. for the year ended 30th April 2012. The members of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the financial report and the information contained therein. We have conducted an independent audit of the financial report in order to express an opinion on its preparation and presentation. No opinion is expressed as to whether the accounting policies used are appropriate to the needs of the members.

Our audit has been conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards to provide reasonable assurance as to whether the financial report is free of material misstatement. Our procedures included examination, on a test basis, of evidence supporting the amounts and other disclosures in the financial report, and the evaluation of significant accounting estimates. These procedures have been undertaken to form an opinion as to whether, in all material respects, the financial report is presented fairly in accordance with Australian accounting concepts and standards so as to present a view which is consistent with our understanding of the financial position of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. and the results of its operations.

The audit opinion expressed in this report has been formed on the above basis.

Qualifications

It is not practicable for us to audit all monies received prior to the initial entry of those transactions in the accounting records. Accordingly, the audit of those receipts was restricted to the amounts recorded in the accounting records.

Qualified Audit Opinion

In our opinion, subject to the effects on the financial report of the matters referred to in the qualifications paragraph, the financial report presents a true and fair view of Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club Inc. as at the 30th April, 2012 and the result of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended and is in accordance with the accounting policies described in the Notes to the financial statements.

TAYLOR PARTNERS PTY LTD CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Date: 2nd July, 2012

JAMES, CA

Moorabbin

PARTNER

220 Chesterville Road, (PO Box 1429) Moorabbin, Vic. 3189
Website: www.taylorpartners.com.au
Telephone: (03) 9553 3223
Email: admin@taylorpartners.com.au
Facsimile: (03) 9553 2548

Liability Limited by a Scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation.

POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC. ABN 83 471 063 765

STATEMENT BY COMMITTEE

AS AT 30TH APRIL, 2012

The Committee has determined that the Club is not a reporting entity as defined in Statement of Accounting Concepts 1:Definition of the Reporting Entity, and therefore there is no requirement to apply accounting concepts or standards in the preparation of these financial statements. The Committee have determined that this special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with those accounting standards and the basis of accounting outlined in Note 1 to the accounts.

In the opinion of the Committee:-

- a) the profit and loss statement and statement of cash flows have been drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the results of the Club for the year ended 30th April, 2012.
 - the balance sheet is drawn up so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Club as at the 30th April, 2012.
 - at the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Club will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.
- The Club has during the financial year:-
 - kept such accounting records as to correctly record and explain its transactions and financial position;
 - kept its accounting records so that true and fair accounts of the Club can be prepared from time to time; and
 - kept its accounting records so that the accounts of the Club can be conveniently and properly audited in accordance with the Associations Incorporation Act.
- 3. The accounts have been properly prepared by a competent person.

This statement is made in accordance with the resolution of the Committee of Management and is signed for and on behalf of the Committee by:-

Dated at Point Leo on the 1st day of July, 2012

POINT LEO SURF LIFE SAVING CLUB INC. ABN 83 471 063 765

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2012

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The following significant accounting policies have been adopted in the preparation of these accounts.

a) General

These financial statements are prepared for distribution to the members and for the purpose of fulfilling the requirements of the Associations Incorporation Act. The Committee has determined that the Club is not a reporting entity and therefore there is no requirement to apply the Accounting Standards in the preparation and presentation of these statements, except for those Standards specified in Schedule 1 of the Associations Incorporation (Prescribed Particulars) Regulations.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the historical cost convention and a going concern assumption. They do not take into account changing money values, or except where stated, current valuations of non current assets.

The accounting reports have been prepared on the basis of recognizing in dollar value only assets and liabilities generally described as cash based.

b) Principal Activity

The Club's sole activity is to provide life saving services and facilities for the community and its members. The Club did not carry out any trading activities during the financial year other than those incidental to the above activity.

c) Income Tax

No amount was required to be provided for income tax.

d) Property, Buildings and Amenities

Buildings and items of plant and equipment are recorded in the balance sheet at cost. The value of such items is brought to account as depreciation over the expected life of each asset.



Club Captain's Report

Season 2011/2012 has been excellent for Point Leo SLSC. We have maintained beach safety through patrols, executed a massive Nipper program, successfully run multiple events and fundraisers and dominated in competition. It is fair to say we can be pretty satisfied with the season just passed.



New Patrol Tent

Patrols have been well attended throughout the season. A great job has been done by our Patrol Captains. This season they utilised various forms of social media to motivate and inform patrol members. Patrols have also been bolstered by new equipment such as shelters and trailers to aid patrolling duties.

The need for members to acquire new awards continues as more qualifications are required by our governing body and as our long serving patrollers retire from active duty. Thus I encourage all members to pursue further awards for the benefit of the club.

Our Nipper program continues to amaze. We have one of the most well attended and run Nipper programs in Victoria, if not the entire country. We should not only be pleased with the results we achieved at the Regional and State Nipper competitions but we should not forget that we are introducing a huge number of children to surf life saving and furthering their awareness and proficiency in the surf.

Competition has traditionally been used as a reward or incentive for patrol and it continues to be a big part of our club. Fortunately Point Leo SLSC is one of the few clubs to achieve a good competition and patrol balance. This is illustrated by several of our top competitors also being our top patrollers in terms of the number of hours patrolled.



Under 14 Girls Nipper Board training session



Senior State Title team and supporters

I am immensely proud to be a member of the Point Leo competition team. In the last seventeen years I have seen our team grow from a battling team of juniors to a dominant force across all age categories. Our recent success is not by chance though. We have to thank our competitors, section captains, coaches, team managers and an army of supporters for our excellent results in local, State and National events.

Our club can definitely run memorable events and functions. The Swim Classic was a great team effort particularly given the weather and the Nipper regional

carnival was possibly the best run life saving event in Victoria in recent history. We also enjoyed some cracking nights, including the Board and Ski Muso Night and the Hall of Fame Night.

Through working together, Point Leo SLSC is able to achieve solid results across all sections. No doubt we have several members that do a lot of the heavy lifting and it is important to recognise and appreciate these members. However, it is the group effort by a countless number of members that makes our club so impressive.

This season past will be my last season as Club Captain. Have no fear, I still intend to be very much involved in the club. I wish the new Club Captain all the best and hope to be able to still provide some assistance when and if required.

See you on the beach next season.

Haydn Tierney Club Captain

Vice Captain's Report

The 2011/2012 season was another highly successful year on the beach in a variety of different ways, from an incredibly good season competitively, to the number of new awards earned by Point Leo members to another year of an exceptionally high standard of patrols. Once again Point Leo SLSC has kept their unblemished record, and there are a number of key people to thank for this. Firstly to the patrol captains, Morgan Jones, Lachlan Pearse, Jackson Curtis, Alex Besson and Tom Alliotti, a massive thank you for all your hard work this season, it is greatly appreciated by me personally, the club more broadly and of course the general public who we all keep safe. A special mention needs to go to Alex Besson as this was his first season as a patrol captain and he has done a fantastic job, we look forward to more seasons with Alex filling one of the captain's positions.



New Patrol Trailer

The Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club collectively completed 1511 hours over the season keeping the water safe, with 551 of those hours being completed on Boxing Day. This speaks volumes of the number of highly committed and motivated members we have. Each of the captains wished me to pass on their thanks to all of the members who turned up week in week out, irrelevant of the weather, to volunteer their time at Point Leo. The club would not and could not continue to operate without the enormous amount of time, effort and hard work that all of you put in. A special thanks to the parents who drive a large proportion of our patrol team to and from patrols every weekend, without you guys we wouldn't have the numbers that we do on the beach so thank you.

Jack Patrick Garner Vice Club Captain

Chief Instructor's Report

During the 2011/2012 life saving season, Point Leo SLSC again achieved excellent numbers in both new Bronze and Surf Rescue Certificate award holders. Congratulations go to Rose Anderson and Di Summers and their respective teams for their hard work and dedication to ensure that these programs were a success.

Thank you to Andrew Gibson for again volunteering his time to put together another successful Adult/Nipper Parent Bronze



2011 Surf Rescue Certificate Course participants

course. Over the past couple of seasons we have gradually seen an increase in the number of parents gaining their Bronze Medallion and further developing their new skills during patrols.



2011 Bronze Squad Training session with Lachlan Pearse

In addition to the Bronze and SRC awards, there are 'specialist' awards that make up our patrol requirements. Congratulations to Matt Bunting-Frame and his team who have run a couple of programs over the season and have significantly increased the number of IRB Crew award holders.

As last year, I would like to remind members that life saving award training continues over the winter months, giving members the opportunity to gain awards such as First Aid, Advanced Resuscitation Techniques (ART) and Spinal Management. Please keep an eye on the club newsletters/emails and the club Facebook page for details on upcoming courses.

Congratulations to all members who either gained a new award or maintained their existing awards by completing their reguals. A full list of new awards gained this season is on page 49.

Thank you again to all the Trainers and Assessors within the club for your hard work and support over the season.

Bree Ambry Chief Instructor



2011 Point Leo Bronze Squad

First Aid Report

This season we had less first aid incidents than previous seasons, with no major first aids reported. The first aids that were completed were well handled by all, from new Bronzies through to our Doctors in the club. It was fabulous to have the help of our medical professionals within the surf club who gave up their time to help out with Nippers and also at the carnivals. Well done to everyone who performed a first aid this year and just a reminder to everyone to please make the effort to keep the first aid room tidy and hygienic for next season.

Reported incidents and injuries:

	09/10	10/11	11/12
Face/Head/Eye	8	5	6
Foot/Toes	4	12	10
Ankle	2	2	1
Leg	3	4	
Hand	3	2	1
Arm	0	2	2
Knee	1	1	1
Shoulder	1	3	1
Torso	2	1	1
Total	24	32	23

Patrol	2
Nippers	4
Beach activities	6
Water activities	12
Water activities	12

Activities in which injuries occurred:

Nature of injury:

Impact	2
Laceration/ abrasion	7
Sting	1
Sprain/Strain/Dislocation/Fracture	7
Respiratory/Asthma	1
Hypothermia	1
Other	5

Simone Garner First Aid Officer

IRB Report

2011/2012 was a season of growth for the Point Leo IRB section. After years of diminishing numbers, this season has been one of substantial growth. This is due to the support of key senior members of the club, including Mick and Luke Treadwell, Blane Paton, Garry Utri and Richard Ellis, without whom we would not have achieved the level of success we have. Many thanks go to these people for their support.

This season we were able to conduct two successful IRB courses out of which we now have 14 new qualified crew and 1 new driver. This is very exciting for the coming season as the potential for growth within our section looks positive with new crew looking to build on their experiences to achieve the driver award. The training of our members took on a new look at times. Having over 20 people attending training required all of Point Leo's boats on the water, a sight not seen for many years. All attending enjoyed the experience.



IRB Training

With the ever expanding summer competition team, this season increased the number of drivers and crew that we as a club were required to supply for carnivals. Point Leo SLSC, with the support of its seasoned drivers and crew, fulfilled the club's carnival requirements, successfully building an excellent rapport with State Centre. Many drivers volunteered their time to help at Senior and Junior carnivals, culminating in the Nipper State Titles at Lorne and Senior State Championships at Anglesea, so that others could compete. To those volunteers, my sincere thanks.



This year saw a continued improvement to our boats and engines, including modifications to the hulls to bring them in line with new IRB regulations. Our engines performed well this year. A new engine enabled us to reduce the workload of some of our older engines, which we will replace next season.

Moving forward, the coming season shows much promise and excitement with more IRB Driver and Crew courses to continue

the momentum we began last year. IRB competition commences next May. Training for this will begin in January for people who achieve the prerequisites for team selection. We hope all will support this new expansion as it enables Point Leo SLSC to get closer to achieving the overall goal of being Champion Club of the Year.

Matthew Bunting-Frame IRB Captain

Team Manager's Report

This year I had the pleasure of managing the Point Leo SLSC Senior Competition team. The size of the job and the degree of commitment involved has taken me by surprise and makes me appreciate the efforts of my predecessor Chris Munro. It has been a steep learning curve for me and I look forward to approaching season 2013 with a lot more experience and insight. My job involves getting teams to local, State and National carnivals. This season Point Leo SLSC competed at six senior Victorian carnivals, the Victorian Championships in Anglesea and the 'Aussies' at Kurrawa on the Gold Coast.

The transport of boards, skis, tents, tubes, reels and trailers is a logistical nightmare, particularly when travelling interstate. The unconditional and enthusiastic support from parents has made my job a lot easier and I would like to thank the drivers who offered to tow the trailer and braved very early starts to be on the West Coast in time for early Sunday morning starts – Aaron Precht, Steve Cassell-Ashton, Chris Gray, John Hough, Jon Ford and Mark Lethlean.



Stacey Lethlean and Chris Munro

It is compulsory for all clubs to supply officials at carnivals. Point Leo SLSC is fortunate enough to have a dedicated group of officials that represent our club. The senior competitors understand and appreciate the important role of officials and would like to thank Tracey Cester, Jo Davis, Tamara Brawn, Gabrielle Collins, Simone Williams, Khali Gooding and Andrew Gibson. IRB crews are also a compulsory requirement and this year I would like to thank Jackson Curtis, Tom Humphris, Andrew Gibson and Chris Gray for their support.

Point Leo SLSC was represented by 58 competitors at the State Championships at Anglesea in March 2012. Athletes braved icy conditions and for the first time in many years Point Leo finished in fourth position narrowly behind Torquay. The club won 9 Gold, 10 Silver and 5 Bronze medals in team events and 9 Gold, 3 Silver and 7 Bronze medals in individual events. The weekend was a lot of fun socially and many thanks to Simone Williams for organising a venue for our traditional Saturday night debriefing and for Chris for organising the blow up pools for the ice baths (right) for the athletes.



Point Leo was represented by 22 competitors (including 3 in the Masters Titles) and 20 support crew at the 'Aussies' which were held at Kurrawa on the Gold Coast. On the first day of the 'Aussies', Matthew Barclay from Maroochydore SLSC tragically lost his life while competing in the U/15 Board race. He was an inspirational and talented young man. The Point Leo team joined with thousands of other 'Aussies' participants at a moving memorial service at Kurrawa beach. Upon the request of Matt's brave parents the competition continued in the honour of his name but was moved to Kirra beach. The logistics of moving gear and athletes became a huge task but was made easier by the quick action of Kate and Andrew Welsh in securing one of the few mini buses available on the Gold Coast. The 'Aussies 'experience was extremely motivational for our young team and we are looking forward to an even bigger Point Leo 'Áussies' campaign next year.

There has been a lot of work at Point Leo SLSC over the past few years in the transition phase of athletes from the junior to the senior level. This program has been spearheaded by Chris Munro and supported by other coaching members Lachlan Pearse, Jon Ford and Matt Bunting-Frame. Their hard work is paying off and several Point Leo athletes made the State teams.

Victorian State Development Squad members:

- Under 13: Samantha Howe and Claudia Whitfort
- Under 15: Lucy Welsh, Olivia Keppell, Caleb Gray and Adam Howgate.

Victorian State Team members:

- Under 15: Jordan Collins, Olivia Keppell, Kate Cassell-Ashton, Adam Howgate and Caleb Gray.
- Under 17: Abby Lethlean

All of the kids identified as State level athletes have tremendous ability. They are great ambassadors of our club and fantastic role models for our younger members. Everyone at the club is very proud of their achievements.



2012 Victorian State Team members (Back) Kate Cassell-Ashton, Olivia Keppell, Abby Lethlean, Caleb Gray, (Front) Jordan Collins, Adam Howgate

In closing I would like to thank the committee for their support during the 2012 season. In particular I thank Ian Knight, Kim Williams and Andrew Gibson. A big thankyou also goes to John Horwood who always seems to be available when I need help. Whether it is at the States, Nationals or around the club house, he always has an answer and a helping hand.

I look forward to another successful season in 2013. See you on the beach.

Stacey Lethlean Team Manager



Start of the Open Men's Surf Teams Race won by the Point Leo SLSC A team Hayden Rydberg, Haydn Tierney, Lachlan Pearse and Zachary Richter.

Point Leo entered three teams in this event highlighting the depth of our Men's swim team. The Point Leo B team placed 6th and included new Hall of Fame inductee Ian Knight, original Hall of Fame inductee Frank Christian, David Russell 2012 National Titles Rescue Tube Race Silver medallist and James Anderson two time National Gold medallist swimming belt for R & R.

R and R Section Report



U15 R & R Team - State Title Gold Medallists Carly Russo, Yasmine Davis, Matilda Harrop, Hannah Carboon and Hanna McDonald

This year, not for lack of trying, has seen only one team compete consistently. The Under 15 R & R team, coached by Geoff Waters, went around again for their third attempt to win an Australian Title. Hannah Carboon and Matilda Harrop joined the well seasoned Carly Russo, Hannah McDonald and Yasmine Davis in their dream for Gold. After starting training, the team formed close bonds and competed consistently at all State carnivals. The team also made the trek to Manly and Freshwater carnivals over the Australia Day week where the results spoke for themselves; this team was a real challenger for the Aussie Title. At States, the girls added to their medal haul from the past two years with another gold medal.

This year the Australian Titles added a cruel blow to the competition. For the second time in three years this team faced a challenge far greater than any competition with the tragic loss of Matthew Barclay. To the girl's credit, they continued to compete, and made the Aussie final. Coming fourth, the girls showed great strength and determination in the final for which they should be commended. For such a young group of competitors, let alone any competitor, I am continually amazed by the mental determination, drive and desire that these girls exhibit. I truly hope that they will make the step and come up into Under 17's and fulfil their dream of winning an Australian Title.

At the State Titles this year we managed to field a team in every section. The teams where made up from a core group of competitors. Simone Williams, Rose Anderson and Dayna Laurence got back together and with Charlotte Coleman and Sophie Welsh gave the other club's Open Women's teams a run for their money. Drilling an impressive 6 after training in the dark the night before, the



Open Mixed R & R Team - State Titles Gold Medallists Rose Anderson, David Russell, Charlotte Coleman, Simone Williams and Dayna Laurence

team came second. David "Jack" Russell joined the four older women to win Gold in the Open Mixed event. Ian Knight joined with this team and they placed third in the Open Mixed 6 person event.

Ian Knight and David Russell made their obligatory appearances with James Anderson in the Open Men's section. They were joined by Zachary Richter (after much convincing) and Jack Caton in the event and received a silver medal for their efforts.

An Under 17 team, comprised of Jack Caton, Freya Tulloch, Sophie Welsh, Carly Russo and Amber Lewis competed in both the Under 19 and under 17 sections, winning a silver in the Under 17's and bronze in the Under 19's.

I would like to thank Geoff Waters for his coaching commitments this season; he was a lone ranger in the coaching role as I struggled to get teams together for the season. Hopefully next year will see a resurrection of some teams and more success.

Congratulations must also go to the 2011 National Gold medal winning Open Women's 5 Person R & R team, Simone Williams, Dayna Laurence, Rose Anderson, Katie Soldani, Ruby Wyett and coach Geoff Waters for winning the LSV Team of the Year at the 2011 LSV Awards of Excellence. A well deserved honour.



Under 17 Mixed R & R team Jack Caton, Sophie Welsh, Carly Russo, Amber Lewis and Freya Tulloch

I would also like to acknowledge Ian Knight and Simone Williams who, along with myself, were recently inducted into the Point Leo SLSC Hall of Fame. All of us are successful R & R competitors in our own right as well as being part of the same team to win a National Gold medal in 1999. It is a wonderful acknowledgement and I know we are all thankful for the role that R & R has played in our competitive achievements.

Khali Gooding Vice President and R & R Captain

Board and Ski Section Report

It is a pleasure to report that the growth in participation and competitive success described in last year's report has continued in the 2011/2012 season. During this time there has been a concerted effort from all coaches to:

- Provide a structured guide to training including team and individual competitor goal setting
- Provide competitor guidelines for training levels required for State and National success
- Practise more frequently in challenging surf in preparation for Aussies
- Continue to mentor Cadets at a group and individual level to achieve their potential
- Continue to streamline the transition from Juniors to Cadets and subsequently Seniors

There are many examples over the season of how these efforts resulted in fantastic outcomes.



Gold Coast Board and Ski Camp participants with Ironmen Phil Clayton and Ky Hurst

The Queensland Board Camp in the September 2011 school holidays was a great experience for those who attended. Thanks to Chris Munro and Queensland Ironman legend Phil Clayton the competitors learnt an amazing amount about themselves as surf lifesavers and individuals. Thankyou also to John Jones for his assistance with obtaining the services of Phil Clayton to coach our members.

Across the Junior, Cadet and Senior competitions a general increase in surf skills was noted, despite our rather lacklustre surf conditions at Leo over summer. We had the first ever ski session at Gunnamatta and

everyone loved it. The Juniors, in very difficult conditions at Lorne States, came back with medals too numerous to mention. Just making it around the cans was a major achievement.

The success of our Cadet program at States really showed our depth and numbers on the starting line. The Cadet Board section at States contributed to the great overall team result of 4th with results such as:

- Gold and silver in the woman's U15 Agua Cameron
- Gold in the woman's U15 board relay
- A clean sweep in the U15 men's board events; relay, board rescue and a fantastic effort by Marco Kelsall to win the individual board

- Abby Lethlean winning bronze in the U17 woman's individual ski and I have to mention Bella Ford getting T-boned 20m from the line in the same race when coming first
- Bronze in the U17 woman's ski relay (our first ever women's ski relay medal!). The girls are leading the pack with ski development!

After coming back from Aussies bruised and battered in 2011, the Cadet and Senior team handled the difficult conditions at Kurrawa with great skill and confidence in 2012. The tragic passing of Matthew Barclay was felt by



U17 Women's Ski Relay State Bronze Medallists Abby Lethlean, Bella Ford, Victoria Roadnight

everyone at Aussies and served to remind us all of the fragility of life, and the importance of safety and skill in the surf. The Aussies experience demonstrated the fantastic level of cohesion and team spirit at Point Leo SLSC.

From a technical perspective a number of huge steps forward were taken in 2011/2012 including:

- U14 Juniors continuing the culture of paddling cadet boards on their knees, and "not going prone".
 This greatly helped development of strength and endurance as well as a solid base technique for many competitors
- The Martha Cove ski sessions on the flats allowed participants to develop a good paddling technique; critical to success in this challenging discipline
- Time trials and video analysis methods assisted competitors to understand the finer aspects of board and ski technique (and we have acquired a Go Pro to allow even more regular analysis in 2013)
- Lachlan Pearse's tightly structured board sessions where we learnt about "feeling the water",
 "shaping up" and maximising power in our stroke

Special thanks to all the 2011/2012 coaches including Matthew Bunting-Frame, Chris Munro, Haydn Tierney, Hayden Rydberg, Clayton McDonald, Travis Cargill, Lachlan Pearse, Di Summers, James Cook, Reid McGowan and Dave Neal. Also to Andrew Welsh and Ken Robinson for their fantastic job managing board maintenance.

Planning is already well underway for the 2012/2013 season including:



Phil Clayton coaching Gold Coast board camp participants

- Competitor's debrief and feedback (completed)
- Coaches planning session (completed)
- Revised (easy to read) competitor season training plan (on the website)
- Options for U13/14/15 competitors to engage in the winter/spring Cadet program (see Cadet Info sheet recently distributed)
- Ski training on the flats at Martha Cove (commenced in June)
- Dates for Board Camp on the Gold Coast (for high level paddlers) and at Point Leo (for developing paddlers) set for the first week of the September school holidays
- Communication of training session details through text and now our Facebook group
- Modification of the Craft Subsidy Policy (formerly 50/50 subsidy) to ensure access to all eligible competitors to quality boards and skis



Start of an U15 Men's Board Race heat at the State Titles

A key focus of next season will be developing the confidence and skills of new Cadets. Whilst some of you may look in awe at the elite board and ski paddlers in the club, all emerging Cadets started off feeling uncertain when using craft in the surf. Our coaches are committed to mentoring as many younger participants as possible through the transition from Juniors to Cadets and eventually Seniors.

Congratulations to the Board and Ski Award winners for 2011/2012:



- Kate Cassell-Ashton (left) for giving it all at training, dramatic improvement during the competition season (Board and Iron) and a gutsy performance against the odds at States
- Marco Kelsall (right) for putting in a fantastic year competing for Point Leo highlighted by gold in the individual board at States
- Lucy Welsh (Encouragement award) for some great results, particularly in States, and her constant positive attitude around the club

Looking forward to a great year in Board and Ski in 2012/2013.



Jon Ford Board and Ski Captain



Under 19 Board competitors – Zachary Richter and Patrick Hough Lorne Carnival February 2012

Swim Section Report

The 2011/2012 life saving competition season was Point Leo SLSC's most successful in years. The Swim Section, contributing15 medals specific to the swimming discipline out of a total of 43, proved a glorious and tremendous effort by our athletes and the competition team as a whole. A further 14 medals were won in mixed discipline events of which swimmers made their mark as strong and competent contributors both as individuals and in team events. As coach and Swim Captain I am proud to witness young members of the swimming squad excel in senior competition and start chasing the more experienced members. Point Leo SLSC is proving to be one of the toughest and competitive swimming teams in the state. The Point Leo Swim Team narrowly missed out on winning the Brad Jones Memorial Trophy at this year's Victorian State Championships. We hope to bring home this prestigious award (named for past Point Leo champion Brad Jones) next season by continuing to display commitment, hard work and persistence in our training and swimming.

The Point Leo SLSC Swimming Team's dominance, robustness and determination were made prominent when three Open Men's Surf Teams were entered in this year's championships, with the Point Leo A Team, consisting of Hayden Rydberg, Lachlan Pearse, Haydn Tierney and Zachary Richter, taking out the gold medal. The Point Leo B Team made up of James Anderson, Frank Christian, Ian Knight and David Russell came 6th. The 2012 Victorian Championships also proved successful for the U15 Women's Surf Team (Olivia Keppell, Natalie Dimitrakas, Lucy Welsh and Kate Cassell-Ashton) who took out the gold medal in their championship race. Three more of our Surf Teams placed second in their events at the State Titles. These were:

- U15 Men's Surf Team Adam Howgate, Caleb Gray, Lachlan Robinson and Ben Ronec
- U17 Women's Surf Team Sophie Welsh, Abby Lethlean, Victoria Roadknight and Amber Lewis
- U19 Men's Surf Team Zachary Richter, Patrick Hough, Tom McFarlane and Jack Caton

Point Leo SLSC also displayed individual feats of greatness in the iron, surf, belt and rescue tube races. Olivia Keppell showed off her strength and surf skills, winning the U15 Women's Surf Race and Ironwoman,

while Adam Howgate dominated the U15 Men's Surf Race, comfortably taking the gold medal. Adam also won gold in the U15 Men's Rescue Tube Race ahead of silver medallist and U15 Ironman Champion Caleb Gray. Zachary Richter and Lachlan Pearse battled ferociously to take out the U19 Men's Belt Race and Open Men's Belt Race respectively. Jack Caton placed second in the U17 Men's Belt Race after more than a few gutsy belt swims in the R & R. Lucy Welsh cemented her place as a strong and competent surf swimmer and even tougher competitor by gaining a bronze medal in the U15 Women's Surf Race. James Anderson made it clear that he is still a force to be reckoned with by placing third in the Open Men's Belt Race. Finally Patrick Hough made his mark at the Victorian State Championships with a fantastic swim and sustained effort in the U19 Ironman, finishing with a bronze medal.



Adam Howgate State Titles Gold Medallist U15 Men's Surf Race & Rescue Tube Race



State Titles Open Men's Rescue Tube Rescue Race Silver Medallists Zachary Richter, Hayden Rydberg, Patrick Hough (Lachlan Pearse not pictured)

The Open Men's Rescue Tube Rescue Race team was more than happy to win a silver medal behind long time winners and past Australian medallists Jan Juc with Hayden Rydberg as patient, Lachlan Pearse as rescuer and Zachary Richter and Patrick Hough as support. Many more notable and incredible swims were had in the U15 Men's and Women's Aqua Cameron Relays and Board Rescues, U19 Men's Board Rescue and R & R. All Victorian State Championship results can be found on page 50.

Point Leo SLSC's campaign at the 2012 Australian Titles was one of its best, not only for the up and coming U15 athletes, but also for the three male Masters who showed-up the younger competitors and demonstrated that age isn't a factor in winning Australian medals! David 'Jack' Russell, a fiery and whippet-like competitor, ignited the Point Leo flame and came home with a Silver medal in the 45yrs+ Rescue Tube Race. I am lucky enough to be part of Jack's yearly training program, which starts in late December whilst he is camping at Point Leo over the summer holiday period.

Along with the rest of the Point Leo SLSC I congratulate Jack on his fantastic effort and Point Leo spirit shown at the recent Australian Championships. Along with his mates Ian Knight and Frank Christian, Jack continues to display feats of courageousness and strength in the surf. Frank and Ian also showed tremendous efforts at the Titles finishing 4th and 7th respectively in their 50yrs+ Rescue Tube Race final. All three swimmers represented Point Leo SLSC in their respective Surf Race finals and swam exceptionally. Together they narrowly missed placing in the 150yrs+ Men's Surf Teams Race finishing 4th with all team members swimming "off-their-chops". Well done boys! Ian and Jack are regular members at club swim training during over January. They are an inspiration to younger members of the squad and have continued to develop their swimming skill and speed over the course of their careers. I look forward to many more courageous medal victories over the next few years with these men!



In the Open Australian Titles competition there were also many notable and hearty efforts from younger Point Leo SLSC competitors. Most outstanding was Caleb Gray's performance in the U15 Men's Rescue Tube Race Championship. Caleb progressed to the final and put everything he had on the line and out to the can. Caleb distinguished himself as one of Point Leo's finest competitors that day, finishing fourth overall by just one stroke length. Caleb showed great potential at this year's Aussies and we hope he continues to achieve at a high level at Point Leo SLSC. Caleb also qualified for the U15 Men's Surf Race final and swam a great race. Olivia Keppell and Caleb both made it to their respective Iron semi finals. Olivia battled through the race showing her ability to compete against the toughest in the country. Olivia also qualified for the U15 Women's Surf Race final, and like her counter-part, gave it everything she had and displayed the makings of a true surf race swimmer. Other successful swimmers at the Australian Titles were Abby Lethlean who progressed to the U17 Women's Surf Race Semis and Zachary Richter who qualified for the U19 Surf Race final. Both competitors again put in a tremendous effort and did Point Leo SLSC proud. I encourage all Australian Championship swimmers to continue to pursue perfection in their swimming and develop their skills and experience in their competition.

It is my utmost pleasure and with great enjoyment that I present the results of the Point Leo SLSC Swimming Section to you. As coach and Swim Captain I am proud and very happy to have such a diverse and comprehensive swimming squad that is achieving at such a high standard. I look forward to the future and in particular the coming Victorian life saving season. I am positive that Point Leo SLSC can improve on the fantastic results achieved this year and more Australian champions will be born.



Open Men's Belt Race Ocean Grove Carnival January 2012 Lachlan Robinson, Tom Brooks, Lachlan Pearse, Jack Caton and Zachary Richter

The Point Leo SLSC Swim Squad continued to train out of Hastings Pelican Park Recreation Centre and improved the number of sessions and extent of training over the summer period. Regular members swam five mornings a week from December through to the end of February. I would like to thank Club Captain, Haydn Tierney, for his continued support and cooperation helping to coach, motivate and direct the swim squad along side myself. The feedback received from other coaches, including those from the wider surf life saving sports community, regarding the fitness and strength of the squad were both positive and rewarding. Again, I would like to congratulate our young athletes on their continued participation in the summer training program. All young swimmers should be commended for their efforts and their parents even more so for sacrificing sleep on their holidays!

Swim Camp

The 2012 Swim Camp was held during the week of 16th – 20th January and was another huge success. 22 participants took part in the camp ranging in age from 13-16. It was a pleasure to watch them swim, develop their technique and fitness and, most rewardingly, their confidence in racing and open water swimming, especially in the Gunnamatta surf. This was evident when watching all participants confidently complete the 2012 Portsea Swim Classic (with a massive smile on their faces); an amazing privilege. I personally would like to thank Patrick Hough, Haydn Tierney, Zachary Richter, Tom McFarlane and especially Stacey Lethlean and Andrew Welsh for their extended efforts and help on Swim Camp. It



Swim camp participants and their massive smiles after completing the Portsea Swim Classic 2012

would not be possible to run such a fantastic and worthwhile week for our athletes without their help.

Swim Camp participants this year were Abby Bloom, Kate Brooks, Tom Brooks, Josh Doherty, Bella Ford, Duncan Fraser-Smith, Annalise Feller, Louis McGowan, Jasmine Genis, Trystan Precht, Romy Lipszyc, Jack Riseley, Kate McNamara, Lachlan Robinson, Abby Lethlean, Mitchell Robinson, Victoria Roadnight, Darcy Wilmott, Heidi Starr, Ella Taylor, Lucy Welsh and Evie Wilkins.

Swim Captain's Awards

The 2011/2012 season saw many excellent results from the Point Leo SLSC Swim Section, both at States and especially at Aussies. However, there were two younger members of the swimming squad that stood out in my mind. Establishing themselves as proficient and exceptional swimmers in surf, their outstanding



performances at the Australian Titles in Queensland this year make them clear and worthy winners of this year's Swim Captain's Awards.

Olivia Keppell (left) and Caleb Gray (right) proudly represented Point Leo SLSC in the Australian Under 15 Surf Race Championship final in their respective genders. Both swam exceptionally well and were a testament to the hard work in the pool over the summer period. Congratulations Olivia and Caleb!



This year the Swim Captain's Encouragement Award is awarded to Lachlan Robinson. Throughout the season, Lachlan continued to improve his swimming ability and skill. The tireless efforts he put in during pool training and the professionalism that he approached his racing with, made him a worthy recipient and future swimming star! Lachlan continues to impress me and himself with his swimming, not only in the surf life saving arena but also in the open water swimming and pool communities. Congratulations Lachie!



The 'backbone' of the Point Leo Swim Team for many years, Hayden Rydberg and Haydn Tierney display their surf skills at the State Titles in Anglesea

Lachlan Pearse Swim Captain

Beach Section Report

Point Leo SLSC fielded a very small beach team this season. The highlights of the season were State Title medals won by:

- Tom McFarlane Gold U19 2km Beach Run
- Jordan Collins Silver U15 Beach Sprint and Bronze U15 Beach Flags
- Jordan Collins, Jess Mourney, Lucy Welsh and Jemma Allsopp Silver U15 Women's Beach Relay
- Trystan Precht, Matthew Blair, Nathan Cester and Darcy Wilmott Silver U15 Men's Beach Relay
- Trystan Precht Bronze U15 Men's Beach Flags



The Most Outstanding Male Beach Competitor this season was awarded to Tom McFarlane (left) for his Gold medal winning 2km run at the State Titles and his outstanding run in the Coolangatta Gold in September 2011.

The Most Outstanding Female Beach Competitor this season was awarded to Jordan Collins (right) who won two individual medals at the State Titles and was selected in the Victorian State Team as the Under 15 Female Beach Competitor.





Boat Section Report



Open Women's Surf Boat Crew State Titles Anglesea Phill Lyons, Rachael Higgins, Alexandra Mantell, Simone Garner and Natalie Johnstone

The season started for the boat section around June last year when we started pre season training at Mount Martha Cove. This season saw the departure of Simone Scheutz back to Mornington and the arrival of Rachael Higgins from Mornington to join myself, Natalie Johnstone, Alexandra Mantell and Simone Garner to form an Open Women's crew. There was some interest in the early stages to form an U23 female crew however it was not to be.

The first event for the season was the Point Leo Marathon held at HMAS Cerberus where the girls placed second in their division.

This season the crew competed in the LSV Summer Series and the Navy Series carnivals. Good results were achieved with the crew making the Open

Women's final on most occasions at these events. Unfortunately due to other commitments of the crew members we were unable to compete at the Aussies in Queensland or the ASRL Open at Stockton NSW. The highlight of the season was at the Victorian Titles held at Anglesea. The girls placed well in the heats, during which 14 crews were eliminated, resulting in us getting into the final where we placed 6th.

Due to injury, I was unable to race the crew for the busy month of January. We were lucky enough to have Trevor Clausen from Woolamai sweep the crew. Trevor is a very experienced sweep, and was at one point in time the Boat Captain at Point Leo SLSC. Trevor's involvement was a sharp learning curve for the girls and myself and without a doubt his contributions to the crew led to much improvement and to achieving our great result at the State Titles. I would like to thank Trevor for his input and his men's crew for helping us out during January and the season.



Open Women's Surf Boat Crew Ocean Grove Carnival January 2012 Natalie Johnstone, Simone Garner, Alexandra Mantell, Rachael Higgins and Trevor Lawson

Overall it was a good season for the crew, it was a vast improvement on the previous season and for that I would like to thank the girls for their hard work and commitment during the season. I will be standing down as Surf Boat Captain at the end of this season, as for family reasons I will be going back to Mornington. I have enjoyed my time here at Point Leo SLSC and thank the club for the opportunity to coach. I would also like to thank the committee for their support over the past two seasons.

Phill Lyons Boat Captain

Junior Report

Again, Point Leo SLSC Nippers had an awesome season!

The Junior Surf Life Saving Program (JSLP) continues to evolve. Each year new elements are introduced that ensure we have a progressive and effective program. It is amazing to see just how far we have come over the journey.

Our goals remain constant and focused. Our main aims are to develop basic beach and surf skills and raise awareness of safety within the beach environment. This is provided in a fun way promoting a healthy and active lifestyle. The JSLP has several pathways for Nippers to move. It can lead to competitive involvement, to Water Safety and to the development of life saving skills. Ultimately we want our Nippers to continue to be involved in a capacity of patrolling and, for some, competition. Point Leo SLSC is a very competitively orientated club amongst the junior ranks. Our focus however, has been to keep a "balance" between the skills and the sport. We strive to maintain that balance during the JSLP.

Point Leo SLSC is a club that embraces all levels of competitive involvement, not just the "best" or the elite. Our Competition Program is now stronger than ever with training from October.



U14 Nippers "having fun"

The commitment to training has had a huge impact on our club in terms of competitive success but also in a sense of belonging to the club. No longer is Nippers just something you do to fill in time over the summer break. At Point Leo SLSC, you can now be serious about surf life saving as a sport .The additional training has also provided a pathway for junior competitors to enter the ranks of seniors. Thanks to Jon Ford, Chris Munro and their many helpers for their time and devotion to developing a strong training program.

Junior Surf Lifesaving Program



Over the past few years, Point Leo SLSC made a commitment to support the continued growth and development of the Nipper program. This has meant that numbers have grown quite substantially in a short time, yet the Club has managed this growth to ensure it delivers a quality and safe program. In Under 7, 8 and 9 numbers were capped at 30 male and 30 female. In Under 10,11,12,13 and 14, numbers were capped at 32 male and 32 female. Nipper membership is now 464. Sadly, there are some that still missed out as some age groups were over-subscribed. There are, however, spaces in other age groups so theoretically we could accommodate over 500 and we are hoping to achieve this over the next few years.

A special thanks to Kim Williams who, again, worked tirelessly on Nipper registrations. Kim was inundated with emails and applications to join our program. This is an incredibly time consuming and difficult task and Kim does a great job maintaining her patience!! This year she has introduced an online Nipper "waiting list" as a preregistration. We are hoping that this will alleviate some of the pressure on potential Nipper parents as well as the Registrar.

The organisational structure introduced several years ago continued to provide a more efficient and effective management process. The management team of Di Summers, Andrew Welsh, Gavin Taylor, Duncan Fraser-Smith and myself, with the new addition of Dana Sawyer, continued to meet throughout the year to ensure that we are proactive in developing and offering a great Nipper program. Dianne Summers, whilst still overseeing, handed the Administration and Age Manager roles to Liz Howe and Dana Sawyer respectively. Liz had a mammoth job with the administration and handled it with great calmness and expertise. Dana did a great job on the beach organising the Age Managers. I am most thankful to Gavin Taylor as he initially resigned from his roles as Activity Manager and Competition Manager. After desperate calls for a replacement with no response, Gavin saved the day by agreeing to continue. Gavin Taylor and Duncan Fraser-Smith continued with the management of the Activity Leaders and both have been incredible. Duncan

also took on more responsibility on a management level which has been highly welcome and invaluable. Gavin as Competition Manager continued to be an effective and organised leader. He has been instrumental in streamlining processes here. On an operational level, Andrew Welsh has been responsible for the purchase, repair and transport of boards to carnivals. He has also provided great direction and insight into decision making and in the running of the program. An absolutely massive thanks goes to Di, Gavin, Duncan, Andrew, Dana and Liz. Our program continued to develop and improve because of your commitment and dedication.



Age Group Manager Gavin Taylor with the U14
Girls Nipper group



Buntine as Water Safety Officer for the second year has alleviated many of the issues we have experienced in the past. I thank David so much as he really has taken ownership of this role and does an amazing job in rallying both the young SRCs and Bronzies as well as the parent bronze holders. He always ensures someone is at the helm and taking control. Water Safety is crucial to the success and the safety of a Nipper program. We will continue to strive for improvements in this area. Huge thanks go to all those who provided Water Safety for our program. This includes the

Surf Rescue Certificate Cadets, "Bronzies" and parents with bronze

qualifications. There are too many to mention but you guys are so important. We would not be able to operate without the safe environment which you provide.

Water Safety continued to

A special thanks to Andrew Gibson. He continues to be a great support and friend to the JSLP in many capacities. I can always rely on his help to fill in for Water Safety Coordination, Activity Leader or whatever area we are in need. No job is ever too big or too small.

Big thanks also to Blane Paton for managing the IRB Water Safety for both JSLP sessions and for the competitions. Blane, again, did a great job. His team of drivers and crew were amazing out there. His fearless team can be found in the IRB section of the report.

A goal of JSLP is to develop our Surf Education program and it is getting stronger every year. I thank Wilga Kottek for taking control of the "Patient Assessment" and delivering a great program. Also thanks to Andrew Bennett and Graeme Cannon for assisting Wilga as well as their "patient" Romy Lipszyc (who was prodded and poked in the name of first aid!). Thanks to Rowena Paton who on many occasions stepped in to take Surf Ed and the Age Managers who were also thrust into this role. The surf education component will continue to be a focus for the next season. A growing number of Nippers are choosing the path to patrolling and water safety which is fantastic. We will ensure that the needs of this group are catered for by striving to provide further education and first aid elements within the JSLP sessions.

Many thanks also to Penelope Ward-Ambler who again took on the role of Social Coordinator and organised some fabulous welcome evenings at the club. She, with Lisa Fraser-Smith, also ran a very successful and fun Disco night.



U14 Girls Beach Sprint Nipper Club Championships

The Junior Club Championships were run on our final JSLP day. This day was run like a mini carnival to give those new to Nippers an opportunity to experience the carnival atmosphere in a familiar, relaxed and fun environment (on their beach with their mates). The Nippers got to participate in a wade, board, sprint, flags, swim and iron race. The results from each event were aggregated to give an overall girl and boy club champion for each age group. A list of the Junior Club Champions can be found on page 46. The day was a HUGE success and many thanks to Gavin Taylor who organised this day. It was great to see so many Nippers having fun whilst experiencing competition.

This program is a parent operated program and I am convinced that we have the most enthusiastic, capable and highly motivated and involved parents. That is why our program is so sensational.

Our Age Managers are truly incredible. They take care of their own group of kids and not only organise but nurture, encourage and motivate them through the JSLP and in most cases the Competition program. The assistants are also to be thanked for their strong support of the Age Managers and for taking over when required.

We also have the best and most skilled Activity Leaders around. Thank you all for your dedication and contribution in delivering a sensational Nipper program.

Thanks to Annette Precht, Judy Leahy, Jane Tierney, Sandra Williams, Jan Williams, Kate Farrar, Iris Cassell, Amanda Roach and Rosalie Machlin for taking on the Uniform shop with such skill and patience.

This year, we again had a roster for the parents who had not taken on a major role. The roster covered BBQ, Beach Set Up and Clubhouse Clean up. Generally, the parents rose to the occasion and were fantastic in contributing where they could.

I extend my gratitude to the amazing BBQ team of Steve Roadnight, Richard Ellis, Aaron Precht and their many assistants. Not only do they provide much needed sustenance, they raised over \$7,400 which is a fabulous effort.

Also thanks to Tina Bedford who not only provides the best coffee and iced chocolates on the Peninsula for us but also donated another \$1810 to Point Leo SLSC. Tina's donations over several years total an amazing \$11,352! Great work, Tina!

Thanks also to the leadership of our Club Captains Max Mezger and Ella Taylor and our Vice Captains Duncan Fraser-Smith and Kate Brooks. You guys are great role models. I congratulate all of you for your wonderful season and hope to see you back helping out next year.

And finally, congratulations to all the inspirational Nippers who participated in the program with so much enthusiasm and energy. As the program progressed, it was fabulous to see Nippers develop skill and confidence in and out of the water. All Nippers face their own personal challenges and it is great to see Nippers take them on. I encourage all Nippers (with the guidance of their parents) to set their own personal goals for the 2013 season. You guys are awesome in your attitudes and achievements.

I also wish to thank Ian Knight, Haydn Tierney and the committee for their ongoing support for our Nipper program. Over the years, I have watched the club become one. I have said it before but Point Leo SLSC has something quite unique. There is a real sense of



U11 Nippers Ellie Doherty and Abby Allsopp

belonging. Friendships are forged and each season strengthened. It seems that all involved with Point Leo SLSC look longingly towards summer and their association with the club. They all embrace the season with such exuberance, and when, finally, the season comes to a close, there is much sadness (and some relief!) that it has all ended for another year. This is what memories are made of and we as a club have something very special.

I have been Junior Co-ordinator for Point Leo SLSC for over 6 years. My youngest Bailey will be in Under 14 next season and I feel it is only responsible that I am there through the transition period of a new co-ordinator. I am sad, however, to be moving on as I feel so much of me is in the JSLP. I never imagined that I would find myself in the shoes of a leader. I still remember the very first session that I faced all those anxious and expectant Nipper faces. I was terrified! That fear pushed me into ensuring that our JSLP was a highly organised, quality and safe program that could manage the growing number of children that wanted to learn the skills associated with surf life saving. Our fantastic parents allowed me to do this by providing the necessary support and skills for a phenomenal program so that, in the end, I could simply stand up front and know that everything was good and those concerned faces would soon relax with the confidence that the JSLP would instil in them.

I am certainly proud of my contribution to our Junior Surf Lifesaving Program. But I have also gained enormous benefits and developed so much as a leader and more importantly as a person through the years and the process of growth.

So I thank you Point Leo SLSC for the opportunity. I thank all the parents who willingly or unwillingly got involved. And I thank with all my heart, all those incredible, brave and amazing Nippers that have passed through the program.

You continue to inspire me.

Julia O'Shaughnessy Junior Activities Co-ordinator

Junior Competition Team

Whilst the focus of Point Leo SLSC Nippers is participation, all Nippers enrolled in the JSLP are also given the opportunity to compete for Point Leo SLSC at Junior carnivals. Juniors interested in competition are encouraged to become part of the Point Leo Junior Competition Team, irrespective of their abilities. This season in excess of 200 Point Leo Nippers registered and competed making our Junior Competition Team the largest in the State.



Nippers at Junior State Titles Lorne February 2012

There are many potential reasons for such a large competition group, including:

- Inclusive and supportive nature of the JSLP program.
- Exceptional encouragement and support from a large group of dedicated Age Managers.
- Excellent professional coaching provided by experienced club members.
- Tireless support from a committed and engaged Nipper parent group.

Carnival Review



Millie Ross and Sacha Bennett race for Gold in the U11 Girls Aqua Cameron Relay at the Junior State Titles. Sacha just pipped Millie for the Gold medal. Congratulations to both teams.

Each life saving season presents its own particular set of logistical and competition challenges. This season, enforced changes to the processing and distribution of S-badges resulted in an extremely short period of time in which Nippers could attain their S-badges before competing at the first carnival at Cosy Corner. It is only through the diligent efforts of Liz Howe and her band of trusty assistants that this mammoth task was achieved with minimal fuss.

In total, Point Leo SLSC Nippers had the opportunity to compete in 5 carnivals including the Regional Qualifying carnival and the State Championships at Lorne.

Our first carnival at Cosy Corner was held in perfect conditions, with mild temperatures and light winds. Each season the number of Point Leo competitors at this carnival increases. Four years ago our Cosy Corner team only numbered 30 competitors. This year, a team of approximately 140 Nippers competed strongly in excellent conditions.

The next carnival on the program was split between South Melbourne and Ocean Grove. The U/13 and U/14's competed at the Senior carnival at Ocean Grove while the younger age groups competed a week later at South Melbourne. The Ocean Grove carnival exposed the older Nipper age groups to the subtly different dynamics of Senior carnivals. It also provided invaluable experience competing in surf conditions and against competitors from Victoria, Tasmania and South Australia who were competing in the Southern States Challenge.



Heidi Starr and Ella Taylor U14 Board Race Ocean Grove Carnival January 2012

Point Leo Nippers dominated the South Melbourne carnival in both numbers and results. A very large team competed in what turned out to be a very small carnival with most West Coast clubs choosing not to attend. Fantastic individual and team results were achieved across all age groups in windy and choppy conditions.

Point Leo SLSC hosted the Regional Qualifying carnival in early February. As the host club, a large number of club volunteers were required to help organise and run the carnival. The carnival ran seamlessly and it was a credit to the many club members who assisted on the day. Over 200 Point Leo Nippers competed in relatively good conditions (compared to the previous year). Terrific results were achieved with all Nippers relishing the opportunity to compete in team events and qualify teams for States. Most age groups qualified two or more teams for each event.

The final carnival before States was held at beautiful Bancoora beach in perfect weather conditions with a moderate swell. Approximately 120 Nippers from Point Leo attended this carnival, with some enjoying the opportunity to test themselves on an ocean beach, whilst others found the conditions a little more challenging.

A team of approximately 170 enthusiastic Point Leo competitors descended on Lorne for the State Titles in early March. Unfortunately strong winds. persistent rain and dangerous sea conditions saw the eventual abandonment of the Saturday individual competition. The weather and sea conditions had improved by Sunday morning and competition commenced with iron-nipper and beltand-reel ambitiously added to the teams program. Progress in some age groups was slow, with many Nippers waiting all day to compete in a team event and in some instances missing out completely as the full day's program couldn't be completed. Whilst this was a great source of frustration to both parents and kids, the entire Point Leo team (including parents) is to be commended for the mature manner in which they conducted themselves in very difficult



Ciara Utri, Chaise Collins, Ellie Doherty and Abby Allsop State Titles Lorne February 2012

circumstances. Congratulations to all the kids who battled sizeable swell and at times arctic conditions to compete proudly for Point Leo SLSC. The overall point score saw us finish a commendable third at a truly memorable State Championship.

Congratulations go to the following Nippers on winning LSV awards at Lorne.

- ❖ Ella Taylor U/14 Female Beach Champion
- ❖ Duncan Fraser-Smith U/14 Male Beach Champion.
- ❖ Samantha Howe U/13 Female Water Champion
- ❖ Claudia Whitfort U/13 Female Beach Champion

Congratulations on a well deserved reward for a season of sustained high-level performance by these four Nippers.



The effort of Romy Lipszyc (left) in making the final round of the Champion Junior Life Saver of the Year is to be commended. The final round involved an extensive first-aid component held at Lorne during the State Titles. This award not only recognizes life saving skill and knowledge but also values leadership qualities. Congratulations and well done Romy.

Future Challenges

The increased numbers of Nippers competing for Point Leo presents many challenges that need to be addressed. A major issue is our requirement to provide sufficient water safety and equipment to cover our carnival obligations. The contribution that parents and club members make to fulfill these obligations is invaluable and their efforts deserve special recognition. However, we need more Nipper parents who have their

Bronze to train as IRB crew or drivers as we have a critical shortage of suitably qualified parents. Particular thanks must be extended to Matthew Bunting-Frame and Luke and Mick Treadwell for helping us out with IRB duties at Lorne and Bancoora this year.

A feature of the 2011/2012 LSV Junior Carnival Program was the high ratio of carnivals held at open beaches (especially West Coast beaches). It is expected that this trend will continue as water quality issues at bay beaches make the scheduling of carnivals at these venues a risky proposition. The challenge for us is to equip our competitors with the right level of skill and knowledge to compete confidently in open beach conditions. The continued evolution and expansion of the coaching program and the development of specialized coaches will dramatically improve the confidence and competence of all Nippers in surf conditions.

Acknowledgements

The involvement and support of Nipper parents is crucial to the success of Point Leo Nippers. Particular mention should be made of the tireless efforts of Gavin Taylor in managing the competition team in a thoroughly professional manner. His organizational skills and attention to detail ensured the smooth running of the competition program. The support provided by Julia O'Shaughnessy, Iris Cassell, Anna Mezger, Dianne Summers and Duncan Fraser-Smith should also be acknowledged. Finally a big thank-you to all the parents and club members who assisted with the myriad of jobs associated with completing another successful season.

Andrew Welsh

Cadets

Retention of members in the U14 to U19 age group is still an issue with most life saving clubs, and as a result, in 2010/2011 Point Leo SLSC implemented a Reward and Recognition program. Although we had a good initial uptake of the program it has been difficult to keep the interest throughout the 2011/2012 season, but we have had several U15 members complete their booklets. Those who achieved the Bronze Level Award were Kate Cassell-Ashton, Matthew Blair, Ben Thiele and Trystan Precht. Trystan also achieved enough points to receive a Silver Level Award.

As we go into the 2012/2013 season there will be continuing assessment of the program to encourage improved cadet involvement and commitment.



Point Leo Cadets at the Ocean Grove carnival January 2012

Many Cadets were able to attend board and swim training camps as well as regular training sessions and club nights throughout the season. These coaching and training programs have been well attended by Cadets and have had a positive influence which was shown in our Senior competition results. These programs have also contributed to mentoring by older members and social connections across a wide age range.

Once again we had a large group complete the SRC at the club with 30 candidates attending either a 2 day training program or overnight camp before completing the award. This enabled many of the Junior and Cadet members to help with CUBS Nipper sessions, assist younger members in the Junior swim at the Point Leo Swim Classic and provide Water Safety at carnivals. Our Cadets also had good attendance at beach patrols during the summer season.

Jane Wilkins
Cadet Coordinator

New Inductees to the Hall of Fame

At the club's 50th Anniversary Dinner held at the Kooyong Lawn Tennis Club on 1st April 2005, Peter Francis, Damien Flouch, Ron Murray, Gary Tierney, Garry Rydberg, Frank Christian, Geoff Waters and Gary Richardson were formally introduced as the initial inductees into the club's Hall of Fame.

The Hall of Fame was established as a means of being able to honour extraordinary competitive performances by club members during the first fifty years of the club's history. To be able to do this, selection

criteria was established that really did relate to ultimate success at the SLSA National Titles and representing Australia in international surf life saving competition.

At the 50th Anniversary Dinner the initial inductees were proudly introduced by John Jones, a past club President who at various stages had something to do with the success of the inductees both in and out of competition. A wall in the clubhouse at Point Leo has been used to display photographs and details of the competitive history of each inductee and it certainly quickly become a highlight for anyone visiting the club for the first time.

Back in 2005 it was agreed that every five years from the date of the initial induction a review would be held to consider new inductees to the Hall of Fame. A sub-committee was formed, considered the matter and during 2011 recommended three new inductees to the Point Leo SLSC Hall of Fame to the club committee. This recommendation was formally accepted by the committee.



Initial Hall of Fame Inductees
Damien Flouch, Peter Francis and Ron Murray

On the 18th May this year, Kooyong Lawn Tennis Club, a truly great venue, was revisited and a cocktail party was held to introduce the three new inductees to the club members. In attendance were over 100 members and friends including four of the initial inductees – Peter Francis, Ron Murray, Damien Flouch and Frank Christian. The late Gary Tierney was represented by Louise and Haydn. Garry Rydberg was unable to attend and was represented by son Hayden. Apologies were received from Gary Richardson and Geoff Waters.

Proceedings commenced with Eddie Kidd, Honorary LSV and Point Leo SLSC Life Member, past Club Captain and highly respected R & R coach and Tom Mollenkopf, past Club President and current Chairman of the Gary Tierney Foundation, outlining to those present the planned proceedings for the evening and the current status of the Point Leo SLSC Hall of Fame.

Each of the original inductees present were presented and spoke of their history with the club and the honour of being a member of the Point Leo SLSC Hall of Fame. Frank Christian who was inducted into the Hall of Fame in 2005, but due to a prior interstate commitment had been unable to attend the evening at Kooyong, was officially welcomed as an inductee and he spoke of his competitive experiences with the club.

Then it was time to introduce and present the new inductees.

Club President Ian Knight had the honour of presenting the first of the new inductees, Simone Williams. Ian coached Simone in the U16 5 Person R & R Gold medal team in 1998/99. During the 15 years that Simone has been competing for Point Leo SLSC she has achieved the following medals at National level.

Australian Championships

Gold Medals

	Cola Mot	adio
1997/98	Kurrawa, Queensland	Under 16 5 Person R & R
1998/99	Kurrawa, Queensland	Under 16 5 Person R & R
2010/11	Kurrawa, Queensland	Open Women's 5 Person R & R
	Bronze Me	edals
2003/04	Kurrawa, Queensland	Open Women's 5 Person R & R
2006/07	Scarborough, WA	Open Women's 5 Person R & R



Simone Williams and Ian Knight

Steve Anstee then took to the microphone and introduced the second inductee, current Club President, Ian Knight. Steve noted that it was a particularly proud moment for him as he had joined the club at the same time as Ian and had been very much a part of Ian's competitive progress through the club. Ian's competitive performances at National level are listed on the next page.



Ian Knight

Australian Championships

Silver Medal

Scarborough, WA 1990/91 Open 6 Man R & R **Australian Masters Championships** Gold Medal Kurrawa, Queensland Over 120 Surf Teams Race 1994/95 Silver Medals Kurrawa, Queensland 1992/93 Over 30 Rescue Tube Race 1997/98 Kurrawa, Queensland Over 130 Surf Teams Race Bronze Medal

2004/05 Kurrawa, Queensland Over 150 Surf Teams Race
Australian Championships - Coach of R & R Team

Gold Medal

1998/99 Kurrawa, Queensland Under 16 5 Person R & R

The third new inductee of the evening, Khali Gooding (née Williams), was presented by Past President Tom Mollenkopf. After achieving four National medals as part of both U16 and Open Women's teams Khali turned to coaching and in only her second year as a coach achieved a Silver Medal with the U19 5 Person R & R team. And of course Ian Knight also coached Khali to Gold with the U16 5 person R & R team in 1998/99. Khali's National level achievements are:

Australian Championships

Gold Medals

1997/98 Kurrawa, Queensland Under 16 5 Person R & R
1998/99 Kurrawa, Queensland Under 16 5 Person R & R

Bronze Medals

2003/04 Kurrawa, Queensland Open Women's 5 Person R & R2006/07 Scarborough, WA Open Women's 5 Person R & R

Australian Championships - Coach of R & R Team

Silver Medal

2008/09 Scarborough, WA Under 19 5 Person R & R



Khali Gooding

lan, Simone and Khali were warmly applauded by all and sundry and each of them spoke about their thoughts and their pride in being inducted into the Point Leo SLSC Hall of Fame and in particular noted how honoured they were to join the inductees originally selected back in 2005.

It was a great evening at Kooyong and everyone in attendance voted it a top night. And it is understood that a number of our younger competitors who were in attendance now have a new mission ahead of them – become a member of the Hall of Fame. Let us hope that they achieve that mission.

John Horwood Vice-President

Coolangatta Gold

Point Leo SLSC was very proud in September 2011 to have two of its members compete in and finish the individual Coolangatta Gold: Hayden Rydberg (Open Male) and Benjamin Marshall (Masters 30-39). We also fielded an Open Men's team with Haydn Tierney on ski, Lachlan Pearse swimming, Tom McFarlane running and Patrick Hough board paddling.

Not stopping their training after the 2011 Australian Championships, these competitors showed just how determined they were to tackle one of surf life saving's most gruelling events of the year, the 46.65 km Coolangatta Gold on Queensland's Gold Coast .On Sunday 25th September, Point Leo's six Coolangatta Gold (CG) competitors began an endurance race that took around five hours to complete and included a 23 km ski paddle, 3.5 km swim, 5.5 km board paddle and three runs totalling 14.65 km.

"Team Leo" finished 10th in the Open Teams with an outstanding time of 04:56:15; a very impressive performance for three members who had never seen or competed in the event before. Placing in the top ten

from a field of 44, is a massive achievement for these four men and the Point Leo SLSC. Even more impressive was Tom McFarlane's performance in the last leg of the race. The Victorian 2012 U19 2 km Beach Run winner posted the 10th fastest time (00:43:42) for the 10 km run out of all competitors entered in the 2011 CG. Tom even topped the Open Male winner, Caine Eckstein, for the last run leg of the race. Running into a headwind for the majority of the 10 km, Tom showed true athleticism and should be commended for his terrific and inspiring feat.

Finishing with a spectacular time of 05:33:50, Ben Marshall placed seventh in the Masters 30-39 category. An avid ski paddler and CG veteran, Ben had a brilliant first leg on the surf ski coming out of the water and into the swim in second place. Congratulations to Ben on his stunning performance.



Hayden Rydberg

Perhaps the most impressive display of athleticism and determination on the day came from Hayden Rydberg, who completed the 2011 CG in 05:10:21. Setting himself the goal of completing the Gold in early April, Hayden finished 27th in the Open Males. His spectacular achievement and goal accomplishment was witnessed by around 20 Point Leo supporters, friends and family, and his celebration was amplified by their cheers and roars as he crossed the line. His utter determination and graceful triumph was an inspiration to the many young members of Point Leo SLSC who were present. Thank you to those on boards who helped Hayden, Ben and Lochie complete their swim leg through the north-easterly wind and chop towards Bilinga.

The Point Leo SLSC has much to be proud of with the success of their athletes in the 2011 Coolangatta Gold. Let their achievements inspire others, especially the younger members, to accomplish their goals for the 2012/2013 season and in future years. Point Leo SLSC looks forward to seeing many more teams and individuals complete the CG in the future.

Lachlan Pearse

Clubhouse Report

The Club has put a lot of time and energy into clubhouse repairs, maintenance and improvements this year. The effort is timely and necessary, both to make safety improvements and because some of our facilities are beginning to get a bit rundown. We started with a working bee back in November. Attendance was disappointing and only 22 out of the scheduled 38 jobs were able to be done. Unfortunately we didn't clean all the gutters and consequently we had rain-water flood into the roof space and bring down a ceiling which meant a repair cost of around \$2000. The following jobs were completed:

Clean out disabled toilet Clean under stairs Cut/trim carpark trees Move double trailer Grub out stumps Kitchen spring clean Overhaul double glass doors Paint double doors Put shadecloth back up Relocate No Parking signs Remove blackout clerestories Repair gate Replace box on board trailer Safely store memorabilia Secure binoculars in tower Service septic Sort out tents Trim east side trees

We set out to replace the rusted roof section of the Gear Shed. Unfortunately Andrew 'put his back out' early in the job and had to be helped from the roof (sincere thanks to Steve Ashton for his gentle assistance). Ben Pitts, carpenter, was then employed to finish the job and with the new skylight in place and the rainwater on the outside, it is a great improvement. Ben also completed the following jobs:

Repair blue door architraves Repair chimney cap Cover tower windowsill Remove graffiti Fit handrail atop Tower ladder Repair holes, skirts kitchenette Overhaul tower ladder Install paddle rack in container Build racks for buoys Repair Bar window winders

Repair Tower Hopper windows Replace missing spout Repair water leak South round window Repair various weatherboards Other jobs completed by tradesmen were:

Clear drains courtyard Remove outside shower Replace fallen ceiling
Move oyster lights Repair dishwasher hose Replace firehose reel
Move TV Replace all stormwater drains Replace stove knob

There is some concern about the crowding in the Training Room (the main downstairs room) on Nipper days, when we can have a couple of hundred Nippers and maybe another hundred parents in the room. To create more space we have disposed of the couches, pool table and most of the permanent tables. The memorabilia is being relocated upstairs and the large glass cabinet will be removed. We also had a 'miniworking bee' to clear space on the seaward side of the clubhouse so that large assemblies could be held outside, weather-permitting. As part of this project Ben Pitts has again been employed to:

Build memorabilia boxes in stairwell
Remove upstairs window and reclad
Build new memorabilia cabinet upstairs
Install new mirror in the female change room
Remove old memorabilia cabinet
Install shower screens in the female change

We would particularly like to thank everyone who helped out on various jobs and working bees and particularly Alf (who does all the lawn-mowing) and John and Max who are always up for a job on short notice (subject to suitable refreshments). We would also like to thank McMahon and Utri (Builders) who again gave us fantastic support by donating the bulk of our hardware and materials purchases.

Steve Roadnight - House Administrator

Andrew Gibson - Chair, Building Subcommittee

Building Sub-Committee Report

Point Leo SLSC recently initiated a Building Sub-Committee currently comprising of Andrew Gibson (Chair), Alf Treadwell, Matthew Bunting-Frame, Lachlan Pearse, Jack Garner, Mick Gayfer and Mark Harrison. The Sub-Committee is working on a 'Five Year Plan' to extend and improve the clubhouse. The objective is to complete major extensions in time for Season 2016. The timeline for this is:

- Needs analysis and consultation (by Mar 2012)
- Concept plan (by 2012 AGM)
- Detailed plans (by end season 2012-2013)
- Seek funding
- Construction

Key aspects of the building redesign currently under consideration are:

- > Extension of upstairs social room.
 - Approx 50% greater floor area by extending North above Wombat Alley to kitchen wall.
- Second storey chalet-style accommodation units upstairs.
 - Probably above kitchen, change rooms and female bunkroom
 - Enter off passage leading to bar and social room.
 - Possibly 6 x 4 person rooms, 2 x 6 person rooms both with ensuite shower and basin.
- Second storey entry from North carpark into reception area.
 - Ramp only or ramp and steps.
 - Memorabilia displays in reception
- Male bunk room becomes craft storage.
 - Possibly North rolladoors to carpark.
- Female bunkroom becomes storage and Gym.
- Outside showers in courtyard alley
- Enlargement of downstairs training room.
- Alteration of downstairs area comprising flat, Patrol room, toilets etc.
 - Improved access to First Aid room and Patrol room
 - Secure area for Patrol equipment
 - Office area
 - Training equipment store.
 - Uniform shop and clothing store combined.
 - Storeroom for tables and chairs
 - Disabled toilet
 - Coffee and sausage sizzle and safe access for both.

Senior Club Championships

This year we had the pleasure of organising and running the Club Champion competition. On the day we had a great turn out and typical Leo conditions. It was clear skies, no wind and lake Leo for the day; familiar to every competitor but much to their dislike. This year the theme was "Something/Someone which begins with the same letter as your first name!!" Easy for some and a challenge for others (sorry Zac). A few of the highlights of the day were Abby 'Asparagus' Lethlean who had pieces of asparagus hanging off her and "Postman" Pat (Hough) who swam in a suit. Great work guys and definitely best dressed this year.

The events this year were the 2km Run, Beach Flags, Beach Sprints, Board Race, the notorious Wade Race, Surf Race, Ironman/Ironwoman, Ski Race, Belt Race and Tube Race.

We would like to thank everyone for their participation and special congratulations to our Club Champions:

Under 15 Darcy Wilmott and Kate Cassell-Ashton

Under 17 Abby Lethlean Under 19 Zachary Richter

Open Lachlan Pearse and Simone Williams

Masters Jon Ford and Vicki Hood

We would also like to extend our thanks to Lochie Pearse and the various other club members that helped with the organization.

Tom McFarlane and Victoria Roadnight

Masters State Championships

Point Leo SLSC's Victorian Masters team is on the rise. Two years ago we fielded a team of two. Last year it was seven. In 2012 we entered a fantastic seventeen Masters. Despite a couple of late scratchings, we had a very successful competition in a big, messy Lorne washing machine.

Several team members had done some serious training (some had not), and it showed in the performances on the day. The team finished the day with six Gold, four Silver and nine Bronze medals for an overall total of 19 medals.

Importantly, we avoided major injuries, of which there were several for other club competitors on the day.

Highlights of the day were:

- Haydn Tierney had his first run with the 'old blokes' and continued the family tradition, featuring in two Gold medal teams and picking up Bronze in both the individual board and surf races.
- Jon Ford was a standout again, entering every possible event, only to be upstaged by wife Michele on the podium.
- Ian Knight and Frank Christian (Gold in Surf Teams) and Dave Russell (Gold in the Surf Race) foreshadowed their excellent performances at the National Masters.

See page 51 for a full list of results.

Masters National Championships

This season saw Point Leo SLSC represented at the Aussies at Kurrawa by three of its long term swimming stalwarts in Frank Christian, Ian Knight and David Russell. The three have around 45 Aussie Titles trips under their belts over the years, so a fair bit of experience was on show with the famous orange cap!

On day one of the titles all three made the final of their surf races. Frank and Ian finished top ten in the 50-54 age group whilst David had fun missing waves in the final of the 45 – 49 year old age group.

The story was similar with the tube races. Frank and Ian both made their way through the heats and semifinals to have two Leo competitors in the 50-54 Rescue Tube Race final. Frank finished 4th and Ian 7th. A great result in a hot field.

David also made his way through the heats and semis in the 45-49 age group Rescue Tube Race. He drew the black buoy in the final in conditions that provided a very testing sweep. David's navigational skills were

sublime. He calculated that he needed to be around three buoys to the right of the black when he hit the sandbar. He then took off with that famous "Jack Russell" turn of speed and swam from seventh place to second place with 30 metres to go. David ended up second and another ten metres would have seen him take gold. It was a great swim from one of the clubs great athletes and turned out to be the clubs only medal at this year's Nationals. Well done Jack!

On day two of the titles these three club stalwarts combined forces in the 150 year plus Surf Teams race. The boys made their way through the heats to the final and in a testing and gripping race which was a solid test of surf skills and fitness came a magnificent 4th

The club is very proud of the efforts of these three and we all look forward to them competing next year with perhaps some other Masters from Point Leo!



Point Leo SLSC Australian Masters Championships Competitors
Frank Christian David "Jack" Russell Ian Knight

Andrew Gibson Masters Co-ordinator

Point Leo Swim Classic

The 2011 Point Leo Swim Classic was a fantastic success and again proved to be one of Point Leo SLSC's biggest fundraisers for 2011. With over 320 entries, the Club and its sponsors can be proud of their efforts and hosting of the festival of events that included the Paton Estate Agents Pty Ltd Nipper and Novice Swims, John Marshall Memorial Surf Race, Honeysuckle Beach Run and Flinders Hotel Point Leo Swim Classic. Boxing Day at Point Leo has definitely consolidated itself as one of the premier events on the open water swim calendar this year with a huge increase in entries from previous years. We hope, with increased marketing and advertisement, this trend will continue for future years.



Start of the Masters wave of the Flinders Hotel Point Leo Swim Classic

The Point Leo SLSC and sponsors of the Boxing Day events congratulate all competitors on their performances on the day. Results for the Beach Run and Swim Classic can be found at: http://my2.raceresult.com/details/index.php?page=4andeventid=9292andlang=en

Special mention should be given to the overall winners of the Flinders Hotel Point Leo Swim Classic, Mark O'Donnell (0:07:20.2) and Harriet Brown (0:07:25.1). Both athletes are very deserving of the 2011 Flinders Hotel Point Leo Swim Classic title. Both proficient open water swimmers, they were a thrill to watch! It should also be acknowledged that Point Leo was very lucky to be graced with Harriet's presence on Boxing Day; a build-up event to the Portsea round of the Ironwomen Series, we thank her for swimming in the Swim Classic and hope to see her again next year.



A swimmer is returned to shore during the Swim Classic

Unfortunately not all went to plan on the day. The weather was such that due to safety reasons and the wellbeing of our entrants, the main swim was cut to half its length. We hope that all competitors understood our decision on the day. As a surf life saving club, we take competitor safety very seriously in and around the water.

Improvements to the 2011 series of Boxing Day events included the extension of the Nipper and Novice Swims (300 to 400 m), addition of Nipper and Beach Run Age Group categories and Swim Classic Heroes (70+) category. Also, for the first time, competitors entered in the Honeysuckle Beach Run were timed. All new features were met with enthusiasm and complimented the days' events. Point Leo SLSC is always

open to constructive ideas on how to improve and better the running of Boxing Day. We take all suggestions seriously.

The Point Leo SLSC would very much like to thank our sponsors and supporters of the 2011 Point Leo Boxing Day series of events:

- Flinders Hotel
- Paton Estate Agents Pty. Ltd.
- Bendigo Bank, Balnarring and District Community Bank Branch
- 2XU
- Point Leo Foreshore Park and Reserve
- Golden Breed Surf Wear
- Engine



The ongoing support of our valuable sponsors is integral to the continuation of this event. We cannot thank them enough for their generous contributions and support.

From all at the Point Leo SLSC, we look forward to another ripper Boxing Day in 2012, hopefully with more sunshine and less wind!

Lachlan Pearse Point Leo Swim Classic Co-Director



Boxing Day 2011 at Point Leo

Gary Tierney Foundation

It is now two years since the Gary Tierney Foundation was formally established and it is incredibly rewarding and uplifting to see the Foundation continue to fulfil its early promise. The outstanding groundwork of our first year has been built on. Now in its second year, we can see growth in the size of the Foundation Fund, excellent support for fund-raising activities and extremely worthy candidates being awarded grants.

Background to the Gary Tierney Foundation

Many of us in the Club were fortunate enough to know Gary Tierney and are aware of his achievements. Not everyone however knows how Gary helped many young members with guidance and financial support.

With Gary's untimely death, there were many club members who wanted to not only perpetuate his memory, but also continue the very important nurturing and supportive role that he undertook. That's why the Gary Tierney Foundation was set up in 2010 – to ensure a legacy that assisted young lifesavers in a very practical way.

The Foundation's aim therefore is to provide financial support to enable younger members of the Club to fulfill their potential in surf life saving. Grants recognize and assist individuals who demonstrate the best of life saving – integrity, leadership and loyalty – and who have the potential to make an ongoing contribution to the Club.

Life saving is a voluntary activity, but unfortunately, for some, there are costs that can be prohibitive. Grants therefore are intended to benefit young members who may be constrained in fulfilling their potential by reason of their financial circumstances or who will otherwise benefit from financial assistance.

Fundraising

With the generous support of club members (past and present), the Club Committee and the Tierney family, the Foundation is now secure and well on the way to achieving its target of \$200,000. This is the capital amount considered necessary for the Foundation to ensure that it can be self-sustaining for decades to come. As at June 2012, the Foundation's balance stood at some \$120,000. This is an outstanding achievement in just two years.

During the course of the year there were a number of fundraising activities, including at Bobbas lunches. The set piece event for the year, however, was a grand cocktail party hosted by Louise Tierney at her home in Eureka Towers at Southbank. This event alone raised nearly \$20,000 for the Foundation.

2012 Grant Recipients

The formal award of the Gary Tierney Foundation Grants took place at a special Presentation Night at the Club on Friday 20 January, 2012 (right). This year the Foundation's Advisory Board, with the approval of the Club Committee, was able to offer two grants to two extremely capable, committed and deserving young club members. Their details are provided below.

The Presentation Night not only recognized the two new Grant Recipients, it celebrated the dedication and enthusiasm shown over the preceding 12 months by the inaugural recipient of a Foundation Grant, Lachlan Pearse.



Foundation Grant Recipient 2012: Victoria Roadnight

It is particularly fitting that Victoria Roadnight be presented as a Gary Tierney Foundation Grant recipient. Gary coached and mentored Victoria during her early years of competition with Point Leo with a focus on swim and board.

Victoria has already achieved an impressive swag of results and awards in both Nipper competition and surf life saving's Cadet program, including:

Most Outstanding Junior Club Member Season 2009/2010

- Gold U15 Women's Cameron Relay 2011 State Titles, Lakes Entrance
- Bronze U15 Women's Board Relay 2011 State Titles, Lakes Entrance

An active member of the club, Victoria's enthusiasm towards all aspects of surf life saving is infectious. Victoria is not only one of Point Leo's most active patrollers (top ten patrol hours last three seasons), Victoria also gets heavily involved in the club's fundraising, working bees, Nipper functions and the Swim Classic.

Victoria won the 2011 Point Leo Club competition, an initiative organized by Lachlan Pearse. Lachlan explained that Victoria competed in all events held. These attributes are what make Victoria a highly valued Point Leo club member and a future champion of the club.

We look forward to Victoria's future State and National Title campaigns and to her ongoing contribution to surf life saving.



Haydn, Louise and Mark Tierney with Victoria Roadnight

Foundation Grant Recipient 2012: Tom McFarlane



Haydn, Louise and Mark Tierney with Tom McFarlane

Tom McFarlane has been a member of Point Leo since under 12s and has competed in every Victorian Titles since the under 14s division. Tom has the rare ability to both run and swim competitively. He is a great young runner and competed in the 2011 Coolangatta Gold in the Point Leo team. The team finished 10th. Tom's desire to compete at the highest level and willingness to be involved in team events are key attributes brought to the attention of the Foundation board.

A second generation club member, Tom was awarded the Beach Captain's award last season as Point Leo's Most Outstanding Beach Competitor. In the same season at the 2011 State Titles in Lakes Entrance Tom also won:

- Silver with Point Leo's U17 Surf Team.
- Silver in the U17 2km Run

Gary was a team mate and friend of Tom's father Daron. Both are now Legends of the Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club whose sons now wear the Orange Cap with pride and determination. The Point Leo community is excited to see Tom carry on the legacy.

Financial Statements and Governance

The Gary Tierney Foundation Fund is a sub-fund of the general Gift Fund of the Point Leo Surf Lifesaving Club Incorporated. The Club has been endorsed by the Australian Taxation Office as a deductible gift recipient in respect of its general Gift Fund. The Foundation was established to support and raise funds for the Club consistent with its purposes but so as to provide for a designated Gary Tierney Foundation Fund Grant.

As a sub-fund, the Foundation's finances are audited as part of the Club's Statutory Audit. A separate account is maintained to ensure that all amounts donated to the Foundation are quarantined and only used in accordance with the approved purposes as specified in the Foundation's Governance Charter. The Foundation's Charter and Grant Policy were approved by the Club Committee in December 2010.

The Advisory Board Members during the year were:

- Louise Tierney
- Mark Tierney
- Haydn Tierney
- Richard Batchelor

- John Horwood
- Andrew Mansour
- Tom Mollenkopf (Chairperson)

The Board formally met three times in the 12 months to 30 June 2012 (and on several other occasions informally)

Grants Policy

The Foundation has established a Grants Policy and it has published guidelines for nominations. These are available to all club members. The Board seeks nominations publicly, via the Club Committee, or it may nominate of its own motion following any consultation or enquiry it considers appropriate. For the 2012/2013 season, the Board expects to call for nominations in October and will announce the Awardee in January 2013.

Tom Mollenkopf Chairperson, Gary Tierney Foundation Advisory Board

Point Leo SLSC Bobbas

Probably the highlight of the Bobbas last twelve months was the "Back to the Roots" Bobbas and partners luncheon held at the clubhouse on Sunday 15th April 2012. The major focus of the day was the unveiling of a plaque commemorating the club's first Bronze Squad. Back in November 1955 seven Point Leo members passed their Bronze Medallion test thus becoming the first squad qualified to patrol the beach at Point Leo.



John Forsyth, Geoff Ewert, Ian Stuart, Richard Ellis, Claus Newhouse, Don Roberts

Of the original seven, five members attended the luncheon. Claus Newhouse, Ian Stuart, John Forsyth, Don Roberts and Geoff Ewert attended along with Richard "Dick" Ellis who was the Instructor of the squad. Two of the original squad, Denis Robinson and Peter Willoughby, were unable to attend on the day and unfortunately the Squad Examiner, Alan Forster has passed away. Both Dick Ellis and Alan Forster were co-founders of the club and of course Dick is still involved assisting with the Nippers BBQ's over summer.

The plaque project was instigated by Alf Treadwell who saw a similar commemoration plaque at Mollymook SLSC some time ago and he decided to do it at Point Leo. Alf sought the assistance of Hillview Quarries who were only too happy to donate a huge bluestone rock and deliver it to Point Leo. It was

placed upon delivery just near the clubhouse close to the path down to the beach. And there it had to stay as once it was there on site there was no way it was going to be moved!

Alf organised the plaque, and spent a great deal of time and effort in ensuring that the plaque was correctly attached to the rock. And it looks great. To make sure that it was a Treadwell occasion, Alf's good wife, Anne unveiled the Leo march past flag from the rock to reveal the first bronze squad commemorative plaque. All in all some forty Bobbas, many with partners, attended the luncheon. In attendance were two Bobbas who had represented Australia in surf life saving competition, we had life members, Hall of Fame members, National and State medal winners, but as was pointed out on the day, there will only be one "first Leo bronze squad" and that was what the occasion was all about!

During the past twelve months the Bobbas conducted their three regular lunches, all at Kooyong Lawn Tennis club and the annual golf day was held at the Flinders Golf Club. Each was a very successful occasion.

Only recently, Simone Williams, now inducted into the club's Hall of Fame was heard to say "I can't wait to be old enough to become a Bobba". Age is all in the mind, Simone, any Point Leo SLSC member is welcome to become a Bobba – all you have to do is watch out for wheel chairs, crutches, hearing aids and walking sticks when you attend one of our functions.

The Bobbas extend best wishes to all involved with the club on another successful year on and off the beach.

John Horwood Bobbas Convenor

Sponsors and Supporters

Point Leo SLSC continued to strengthen sponsorship potential and build on relationships with existing sponsors of the Club this season. It is pleasing that the Point Leo SLSC has built relationships with new and existing organisations and local businesses to form a strong sponsorship base. Our sponsors, supporters and donors have generously provided financial or other goods and services to support the local volunteer service and sporting endeavours of the Point Leo SLSC. In return, our club hopes to provide exposure to all our sponsors and further develop its relationships with our sponsors and the wider community.

Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club offers a range of sponsorship options and our Sponsorship Sub-committee are keen to work with potential sponsors to find a package that is most beneficial towards achieving their business objectives by providing optimum exposure and return for their sponsorship spend. Individual packages can be developed to suit the individual needs of businesses.



The Committee would like to acknowledge the generous financial support of our major sponsor the **Flinders Hotel**. This year the hotel took major naming rights of the Boxing Day swim classic race; it is now known as the 'Flinders Hotel Point Leo Swim Classic'. This is the second year that Flinders Hotel has been our major sponsor and we look forward to their support again next season.

The Point Leo Surf Life Saving Club appreciates the support of the following sponsors, supporters and donors. We truly value your support and hope to give in return as much exposure to your business as we can.

Sponsors

Flinders Hotel (Major Sponsor)
Balnarring and District Community Bank – Bendigo Bank
Eastcoast Swimming Pools
Paton Estate Agents Pty. Ltd.

Supporters and Donors

2XU
ALH Group
Balnarring Pharmacy
Bistro Maison Restaurant Mt Eliza
Bluegum Clothing
Brew to you
Cellar & Pantry Red Hill
East Coast Surf School
Engine
G & L Tierney Pty Ltd
Golden Breed
Hillview Quarries
Main Ridge Olives
McMahon & Utri

Duncan Fraser-Smith Vice-President

Peninsula Hot Springs
Phil Clayton
Point Leo Foreshore Committee of Management
Red Hill Brewery
Red Hill House
Red Hill Lions Club
Red Hill Organics
Ritchie's Balnarring
Salix Restaurant
The Lamattina Group
Trigger Brothers
Utri & McMahon Builders
Vantage Fuels

President's Trophies

Three President's Trophies are presented annually, one Junior, one Senior and the Dick Catterick Award (in honour of our clubhouse caretaker from the 70's and 80's). They are the highest annual awards that the Club can bestow on one of its members. The trophies are awarded on the basis of the acceptance of the duties of a member and the provision of leadership in the Club and Life Saving Victoria activities, competitive performance, fostering of team spirit and personal conduct and demeanor.

Your Shuttle

President's Trophy Senior - Jon Ford

Fittingly, this award goes to one of the many club quiet achievers at Point Leo SLSC, Jon Ford.



Jon Ford (left) has made an excellent contribution to the Point Leo SLSC this year. Jon is a major contributor into the organising of the year round board and ski training and coaches as well. At times during the winter months in particular, some 20 – 30 members could be seen going for a ski paddle or board ride with Jon and the other coaches he arranges. One of the main reasons Point Leo competed so successfully at the State Titles this season was the impact the board and ski section made as a result of Jon's hard work over an extended period of time.

Jon also patrols and takes the older Nippers for their board sessions during the season. He

organised the now growing famous by the year "musos night" and raised a significant amount of funds for the club. He is an excellent Senior President's Trophy winner that this year had a large amount of candidates that were also very worthy of the award.

Jon also serves on the club committee, is 'on the ball' with his paperwork for policies, training programs and his overall contribution to the club is significant.

The club is blessed to have volunteers like Jon as a member and I would like to congratulate Jon on winning this award

President's Trophy Junior - Victoria Roadnight

Over the past few seasons I continue to observe many of our Point Leo young members coming through the ranks who display all the qualities and skills you like to see in our developing juniors.

One member of that large group is Victoria Roadnight (right). Victoria is one of those members who is quiet yet driven. Victoria commits herself to all aspects of life saving and this year she displayed her overall skills and dedication to Point Leo in a number of ways, i.e:

- Regional, State and National competitor
- Strong supporter and assistant organizer of club fund raising activities
- Patrol duties (73 hours this season)
- General assistant and great helper around the club. Some of the most pleasing aspect's of Victoria overall are:
 - o her contribution to duties such as clubhouse duties and cleaning.
 - o assistance with Nippers.
 - o her ability to take responsibility and make things happen.
 - the fact that she contributes to many facets of the club without being asked to. She is a self motivated young woman who takes on and relishes responsibility; a facet I truly admire in all people and do so in particular with Victoria.
 - her demeanour with everyone she is involved with and mature approach overall to club and other matters.
 - o further extension of her SLSA qualifications this season by obtaining the IRB Crew certificate

It is a pleasure to know that great committed young members such as Victoria represent the future of this club. I wish her all the best in her future years and would like to congratulate her on winning this award.



Dick Catterick Trophy - Andrew Welsh

This annual award is presented in memory of the late Dick Catterick who was the clubhouse supervisor at 'The Willards' (the old clubhouse). The award recognizes a club member who has made an outstanding contribution to the club during the season.

Fittingly, this award goes to another of the many club quiet achievers at Point Leo, Andrew Welsh

Andrew joined Point Leo committee in 2010/2011 and made an instant impact with his clear endeavours, attention to detail and welcoming demeanour.



Andrew is one of those members who make it happen with a minimum of fuss but with a maximum of input.

His early years in the club focused on Nippers (not surprising given Sophie, Lucy (pictured with Andrew left) and Callum were or still are participants). Andrew immediately took on roles such as Age Manager, 'full time' mender of dinged nipper boards, gear transport officer and general 'can do man'.

Over the past season Andrew has extended his voluminous work and involvement with the club by becoming a major contributor to the committee side of the club and he also takes on the role of

managing our annual Junior or Regional Junior carnivals that Point Leo host. One of the single greatest assets Andrew brings to the club is the seamless and effortless management of Junior carnivals and this year in particular the official feedback from Life Saving Victoria and carnival officials was that Point Leo hosts wonderfully organized carnivals and we set the benchmark for such events. Andrew's management skills are a testament to the continued good relations the club has with LSV.

Well done to Andrew and the strong team he surrounds himself with. This is a richly deserved award for him.

Ian Knight President

LSV Member Recognition

Cath McCraith

This year Nipper parent Cath McCraith was recognised by the Life Saving Victoria Youth, Leadership and Development section when she was presented with an award for Outstanding Service to Junior Development as LSV Membership Protection Officer for the last decade. This award was given in recognition of Cath's continuous service in the area of Junior Development. Cath has volunteered many hours of her time as the Membership Protection Officer for Life Saving Victoria, working behind the scenes to ensure all members feel safe and included in our organisation. In this role she has advised the Board of Management of legislative changes affecting LSV and developed and implemented policy changes including the 'very popular' WWCC and the recent photo/media procedures at Junior carnivals. Her role also included listening to and advising members and clubs on numerous 'issues' across the State concerning membership protection policies, procedures and legislation. Cath is also the Point Leo U10 Girls Age Group Manager and the Point Leo SLSC Member Protection Officer and we thank her for undertaking these roles at our club in addition to her LSV commitments.

Chris Gray

At the Victorian Junior Lifesaving Championships at Lorne, Point Leo member Chris Gray (right), father of Caleb and Hollee, was presented with an award "For Outstanding Service to Junior Development". Over several years Chris has devoted many hours to supporting Nippers. He drives IRBs for club training and carnivals at all levels and tows competition trailers to carnivals. With Caleb's selection in both the State Junior Development Team and State Team, Chris found himself in demand again as an IRB driver for State training. Chris was the Point Leo SLSC IRB Captain in season 2010/2011.



Patrol Awards

Outstanding Patroller Patrol 1: Hannah Carboon

Patrol 2: Alexandra Mantell Patrol 3: Matilda Shannon Patrol 4: Tom Brooks Patrol 5: Dylan Logan Patrol 6: Garry Utri

Patroller of the YearTrystan PrechtClub Captain's AwardLachlan Robinson

Competition Awards

Most Outstanding Board and Ski Competitors Male: Marco Kelsall

Female: Kate Cassell-Ashton

Board and Ski Captain's Encouragement Award

Most Outstanding Swim Competitors

Male: Caleb Gray Female: Olivia Keppell Lachlan Robinson

Lucy Welsh

Swim Captain's Encouragement Award

Most Outstanding R & R Team

Most Outstanding Boat Crew

Hannah McDonald, Carly Russo, Yasmine Davis, Matilda Harrop, Hannah Carboon, Geoff Waters (coach)

Natalie Johnstone, Alexandra Mantell, Simone Garner,

Rachael Higgins, Phil Lyons (sweep)

Most Outstanding Beach Competitors

Male: Tom McFarlane Female: Jordan Collins

Junior Awards

Jill McKellar Nipper of the YearMax MezgerOutstanding Nipper CompetitorElla TaylorMost Dedicated Junior Club MemberRomy LipszycJunior Co-ordinators AwardAnnalise Feller

Senior Club Champions

Under 15 Darcy Wilmott Kate Cassell-Ashton Under 17 N/A Abby Lethlean

Under 19 Zachary Richter N/A

Open Lachlan Pearse Simone Williams Masters Jon Ford Vicki Hood

Junior Club Champions

Under 8	Charlie Enders	Bridie Hipwell
Under 9	Will Laussen	Lucy Searle
Under 10	Jesse Doherty	Mietta Russell
Under 11	Max Mourney	Piper Harrison
Under 12	Callum Welsh	Caitlin Robinson
Under 13	Tristan Collins	Samantha Howe
Under 14	Duncan Fraser-Smith	Kate Brooks

LSV Nipper Awards

Under 14 Champion Male Beach Competitor Duncan Fraser-Smith

Under 14 Champion Female Beach Competitor
Under 13 Champion Female Water Competitor
Under 13 Champion Female Beach Competitor
Under 13 Champion Female Water Competitor

Patrol Hours

Name	Patrol Hours	Water Safety	Total	Name	Patrol Hours	Water Safety	Total
A`beckett, Camilla	23.5	0	23.5	Diconza, Nat	4	0	4
Aliotti, Bonnie	0	0	0	Dimitrakas, Natalie	19	0	19
Aliotti, Marc	25	0	25	Dixon, Anna	26	2	28
Aliotti, Tom	38	0	38	Doherty, Joshua	31	20.5	51.5
Allsopp, Jemma	6.5	12.5	19	Doherty, Paul	10.5	18.5	29
Allsopp, Thomas	0	8	8	Doherty, Tara	9.5	36.25	45.75
Anderson, James	13	0	13	Duncan, Ally	27	0	27
Anderson, Rose	54	0	54	Ebeyer, Jessica	47.75	12.25	60
Andrew, Oliver	24	7.25	31.25	Farrar, Angus	30	0	30
Atkins, Harry	8	20.5	28.5	Feller, Annalise	50.5	13.75	64.25
Barry, Nicholas	9	0	9	Forbes, Isabelle	5.25	0	5.25
Beanland, Louis	12.5	0	12.5	Ford, Isabella	23.25	2.5	25.75
Beanland, Minna	36.5	0	36.5	Ford, Jon	16.25	0	16.25
Beaumont, Gabriella	14	5.5	19.5	Ford, Michele	9	2	11
Bennett, Mimi	11.5	0	11.5	Fraser-Smith, Duncan	27.5	20.5	48
Berry, Amelia	2.75	0	2.75	Freeman, Jeremy	0	4.5	4.5
Besson, Alex	68	0	68	Garner, Jack	43	0	43
Bird, Jessica	0	0	0	Garner, Simone	28.25	0	28.25
Bird, Melissa	9	0	9	Gayfer, Charley	0	0	0
Blair, Matthew	24.5	21.5	46	Gearing, David	4	0	4
Blair-Holt, James	6	10.25	16.25	Genis, Jasmine	29.5	9.5	39
Bloom, Abigail	9.5	12.25	21.75	Gibb, Harriet	0	0	0
Brooks, Anthony	0	23	23	Gibson, Andrew	53	16	69
Brooks, Kate	12.5	15.5	28	Golvan, Ariel	0	0	0
Brooks, Thomas	46.5	27.75	74.25	Grant, Lucy	39	12	51
Brown, Angus	24.75	9	33.75	Gray, Caleb	27.5	10.5	38
Brown, Fraser	30.5	0	30.5	Gray, Chris	7	11	18
Brown, Mitchell	7	4.5	11.5	Gray, Sarah	12.5	0	12.5
Buchanan, Brittany	29	0	29	Gust, Emma	15	0	15
Buntine, David	0	25	25	Harris, Emily	16	0	16
Bunting-Frame, Matthew	5	6.5	11.5	Harrison, Mark	0	17.75	17.75
Carboon, Hannah	30	6.75	36.75	Harrop, Matilda	38.75	4.5	43.25
Cargill, Travis	7.5	0	7.5	Hartley, Lily	29	13	42
Cargill, Zane	20	12.75	32.75	Hicks, James	19	8	27
Carson, Elisa	23.5	4	27.5	Hicks, Oliver	43	17.5	60.5
Cassell-Ashton, Kate	41	13.25	54.25	Higgins, Kate	16	0	16
Caton, Jack	30	0	30	Hipwell, Greg	0	18	18
Christian, Francis	8	0	8	Hood, Vicki	19.5	14.5	34
Clark, Emily	31.25	8.5	39.75	Hough, Patrick	43.5	2.5	46
Clarke, Nicholas	0	20.5	20.5	Hudson, Ehren	0	0	0
Coleman, Charlotte	20.5	0	20.5	Humphries, Camilla	16	0	16
Coleman, Max	17	7.5	24.5	Humphris, Thomas	33.5	0	33.5
Collins, Jordan	25.5	3.5	29	Jaeger, Oscar	20	0	20
Condon, Hugh	4	30.25	34.25	Johnstone, Natalie	34.25	0	34.25
Cook, Olivia	22 49 E	17.75	39.75	Jones, Morgan	35	0	35
Curtis, Jackson	48.5	0	48.5	Keppell, Hudson	14	0	14
Dart-Harrison, Melissa	0	21.25	21.25 31	Keppell, Olivia	22	2.5	24.5
Datnow-Jamieson, Daniel	23 16	8	16	Keppell, Rodney	4 0	2.5 8.5	6.5 8.5
Davis, Joanne	12	0	12	Knight, Ian			
Davis, Kirsten		0		Kotorlis, Kosta	22.5	9	31.5
Davis, Yasmine Denehy, Thomas	44.5 18	0 0	44.5 18	Laurence, Dayna Lethlean, Abby	41.5 44.5	0 5.5	41.5 50
Dewhurst, Jack	30	2.5	32.5	Lethlean, Mark	44.5 27	5.5 11	38
	0	2.5	32.5 0	Lethlean, Stacey	27 26	11	36 37
Dewhurst, Lucy Diconza, Jaxon			27.5	Lewis, Amber	26 35.5	6.25	3 <i>1</i> 41.75
Diconza, Jaxon Diconza, Kirra	27.5 8	0 0	27.5 8	Lillycrapp, James	35.5 24	0.25	41.75 24
DICUTIZA, NITA	ō	U	Ø	LillyCrapp, Jailles	24	U	24

Name	Patrol Hours	Water Safety	Total	Name	Patrol Hours	Water Safety	Total
Lillycrapp, Sarah	24	0	24	Russell, David	0	32.75	32.75
Lipszyc, Adam	14	17.75	31.75	Russell, Kaitlin	24.5	12.25	36.75
Lipszyc, Kimberley	14	0	14	Russo, Carly	33.5	0	33.5
Lipszyc, Romy	49.5	27.25	76.75	Russo, Ellie	15.5	0	15.5
Logan, Dylan	48.75	0	48.75	Rydberg, Hayden	4	0	4
Lowther, Jules	25.5	0	25.5	Sanders, William	19	0	19
Lyons, Phillip	19.5	0	19.5	Saville, Nathan	1	2.5	3.5
Machlin, Julia	0	13.5	13.5	Sawyer, Dana	6	16.5	22.5
Magee, Hugh	20	0	20	Schofield, Joseph	32.25	2.5	34.75
Malesa, Felicity	9	0	9	Shannon, Matilda	54.25	3	57.25
Mantell, Alexandra	46.75	0	46.75 16	Starr, Emily	17.5	16.75 15.5	34.25
Marshall, Benjamin Mason, Ella	16 16	0 0	16	Starr, Heidi Starr, Joshua	17.5 8	15.5	33 8
McDonald, Clayton	45	7.5	52.5	Sullivan, Nicholas	11	14.5	25.5
McDonald, Hannah	44.5	0	44.5	Sullivan, William	5	26	31
McDonald, Liam	10.25	7.5	17.75	Sunderland, Kate	12.5	0	12.5
McFarlane, Thomas	34	0	34	Sweetman, Brooke	22	10	32
McGowan, Louis	28.75	11	39.75	Taylor, Ella	24.5	20.5	45
McGregor, Sarah	20	0	20	Taylor, Heather	1.5	10	11.5
McLellan, Mikey	40.5	5.5	46	Taylor, Lachlan	4	0	4
McNamara, Jack	0	2	2	Taylor, Milly	26	0	26
McNamara, Kate	20	14.25	34.25	Thiele, Benjamin	38	19.5	57.5
Mezger, Max	23.5	15.25	38.75	Thurley, Larissa	12	0	12
Morgenthaler, Brittany	36.25	12.75	49	Tierney, Haydn	33	0	33
Morrissy, Kym	0	16.25	16.25	Townshend, Charlotte	4.5	0	4.5
Mourney, Bruce	6.5	13.5	20	Townshend, Lily	16	0	16
Mourney, Jessica	0	7.5	7.5	Treadwell, Luke	26	0	26
Munro, Chris	24.5	0	24.5	Treadwell, Michael	45	0	45
Neal, Dylan	9	0	9	Tulloch, Alexandra	0	0	0
Nott, Andrew	53	22.25	75.25	Tulloch, Freya	16.5	19.75	36.25
Nott, Fraser	27.5	3 25.5	30.5 25.5	Turner, Liam	16	0 2.5	16 37
O`Hara, Andrew O`Sullivan, William	0 18	25.5 0	25.5 18	Utri, Conor Utri, Fergal	34.5 54.5	2.5 23.25	37 77.75
Panton, Matthew	13	3	16	Utri, Garry	34.5	19.5	77.73 54
Paton, Blane	18	30	52	Utri, Liam	27.5	20.5	48
Paton, Isabel	20.25	4	24.25	Van Leeuwen, Hilary	24	0	24
Paton, Rowena	0	11.5	11.5	Van Leeuwen, Philippa	30.5	0	30.5
Paul-Drevensek, Kate	7.5	0	7.5	Walker, Jack	0	10.5	10.5
Pearse, Callum	19.5	0	19.5	Walker, Wendy	0	9.75	9.75
Pearse, Lachlan	33	0	33	Walter, Ella	9.5	7.75	17.25
Potter, Zoe	22	15.5	37.5	Ward-Ambler, Annie	3	13.25	16.25
Powell, Miranda	22.5	0	22.5	Ward-Ambler, Emily	7.5	2.25	9.75
Precht, Trystan	106.5	24.75	131.25	Warren, Suzie	30.5	0	30.5
Pressley, Charlotte	5	0	5	Welsh, Lucy	64.5	9	73.5
Regan, Holly	1.75	0	1.75	Welsh, Sophie	19.5	4.5	24
Ricca, Sophie	10	0	10	White, Billy	12	4	16
Richards, Christopher	0	3.5	3.5	Wilkins, Evie	47.5	12.5	60
Richter, Zachary	24.5	0	24.5	Wilkins, Maxwell	21.5	0	21.5
Riseley, Jack	4	14.75	18.75	Williams, Simone	4	0	4
Roadnight, Sara	32	0	32	Wilmott, Darcy	50	7.5	57.5
Roadnight, Scott	54 57	0 16	54 72	Wiseman, James	2	3	5 11 5
Roadnight, Victoria	57 72	16 8.5	73 80.5	Wiseman, Laetitia	9.5	2	11.5
Robinson, Lachlan Robinson, Mitchell	72 19	8.5 14.75	80.5 33.75	Wood, Samuel Woods, Nicholas	0 7.5	0 12	0 19.5
Robison, Mitchell	39	14.75	33.75 53	Wynn-Pope, Harry	7.5 47.5	11.75	19.5 59.25
Robison, Hannah	22	8.75	30.75	Young, Harrison	47.5	0	59.25 9
Ronec, Ben	45.5	6.25	51.75	Young, William	5	0	5
Ronco, Den	+5.5	0.20	51.75	roung, william	J	U	5

Lifesaving Awards

5 Year National Patrol Service Award

Aliotti, Tom

Brawn, Tamara-Leigh Curtis, Jackson Garner, Jack Gibb, Harriet Hartley, Lily Hough, Patrick Laurence, Dayna Munro, Chris Pearse, Lachlan Richter, Zachary

Michelle

Treadwell. Luke Utri, Garry

Roadnight, Sara

Roadnight, Scott

Royal-Hebblewhite,

Van Leeuwen, Philippa

10 Year National Patrol Service Award

Ellis, Richard Garner, Simone Gooding, Khali Johnstone, Natalie Mollenkopf, Thomas Tierney, Mark Treadwell, Michael Williams, Simone

15 Year National Patrol **Service Award**

Gibson, Andrew Tierney, Haydn

Advanced Resuscitation Techniques Certificate

Anderson, Rose Berry, Amelia Coleman, Charlotte Curtis, Jackson Garner, Simone Gibson, Andrew Hough, Emily Pearse, Callum Sullivan, William

Age Managers Course Presenter

Collins, Gabrielle Summers, Dianne **Assessor Bronze** Medallion

Summers. Dianne **Bronze Medallion**

Beaumont, Gabriella Beck. Justine Berry, Amelia Blair-Holt, James

Brooks, Thomas

Brown, Mitchell Buchanan, Brittany Cameron, James Coleman, Max Diconza, Jaxon Dixon, Anna Doherty, Paul

Duncan, Ally Forbes, Isabelle Ford, Isabella Ford, Michele Freeman, Jeremy Gray, Leeonie Hoskins, Richard Howlett, Christopher

Lethlean, Abby Lewis, Amber Logan, Dylan Malanina, Alexandra

McLellan, Mikey Mealey, Glenn Morgenthaler, Brittany

Morrissy, Kym Northcote, Steven Nott. Fraser

O'Sullivan, William Powell, Miranda Precht, Trystan Puleio, Antonio

Regan, Holly Richards, Christopher Robison, Amelia Russell, Kaitlin Saville, Nathan Schofield, Joseph Shannon, Matilda Skinner, Peter Starr, Emily

Taylor, Milly Thiele, Benjamin Townshend, Charlotte Tulloch, Freya Tulloch, Jody

Utri, Fergal Walker, Jack Walter, Ella

Ward-Ambler, Annie Wilmshurst, Peter Wiseman, Laetitia Wynn-Pope, Harry

Certificate II in Public Safety (Aquatic Rescue)

Beaumont, Gabriella Beck, Justine Berry, Amelia Blair-Holt, James Brooks, Thomas Brown, Mitchell

Buchanan, Brittany Cameron, James Clarke, Nicholas Coleman, Max

Dart-Harrison, Melissa Diconza, Jaxon Dixon, Anna Doherty, Paul Duncan, Ally Forbes, Isabelle Ford, Isabella Ford, Michele

Freeman, Jeremy Gray, Leeonie Hoskins, Richard Howlett, Christopher

King, Drew Lethlean, Abby Lewis, Amber Logan, Dylan Malanina, Alexandra McLellan, Mikey

Mealey, Glenn Morgenthaler, Brittany Morrissy, Kym

Northcote, Steven Nott, Fraser O'Sullivan, William Paton, Blane Paton, Rowena Powell, Miranda Precht, Trystan Puleio, Antonio Regan, Holly

Richards, Christopher Robison, Amelia Russell, Kaitlin Saville, Nathan

Schofield, Joseph Shannon, Matilda Skinner, Peter Starr, Emily Taylor, Milly Thiele, Benjamin

Townshend, Charlotte Tulloch, Freya

Tulloch, Jody Utri, Fergal Walker, Jack Walter, Ella

Wilmshurst, Peter Wiseman, Laetitia Wynn-Pope, Harry **IRB Crew Certificate**

Ward-Ambler, Annie

Beaumont, Gabriella Berry, Amelia Brooks, Anthony

Brooks, Thomas Lewis, Amber Pearse, Callum Precht, Trystan Roadnight, Victoria Sullivan, William Thiele, Benjamin Utri, Conor Utri, Fergal Warner, Edward Welsh, Andrew

Junior Activities Age

Manager Collins, Gabrielle Ronec, Peter

Slater, Bronwen **Senior First Aid** Allsopp, Thomas Anderson, Rose

Besson, Alex

Cassell-Ashton, Kate

Davis, Joanne Dewhurst, Jack Horwood, John Jeffrey, Maxwell Jones, Morgan Lillycrapp, Sarah McGill, Jacinta Richter, Zachary Sullivan, William Young, Harrison

Silver Medallion Basic **Beach Management**

Feller, Julian Pearse, Callum Silver Medallion IRB

Driver

Pearse, Lachlan **Spinal Management**

Curtis, Jackson Pearse, Callum **Surf Official Level 2** Keppell, Rodney

Surf Rescue Certificate

Allsopp, Jemma Atkins, Harry Bloom, Abigail Brooks, Kate Doherty, Joshua Ebeyer, Jessica Feller, Annalise Fraser-Smith, Duncan Genis, Jasmine Grant, Lucy Kotorlis, Kosta Lipszyc, Romy Machlin, Julia McDonald, Liam McGowan, Louis

McNamara, Kate Potter, Zoe Sweetman, Brooke Townshend, Lily Mezger, Max Robinson, Mitchell Taylor, Ella Utri, Aisling White, Billy Nott. Andrew Starr. Heidi Taylor, Heather

Matthew Bunting-Frame

Bree Ambry

10 Year National Patrol Service Award Training Officer Advanced Resuscitation Techniques

Training Officer IRB Facilitator Apply First Aid

Training Officer Bronze Medallion Training Officer Spinal Management

Centre Operations)

Senior State Title Results

Gold Medallists - State Champions

Open Men's Belt Race Lachlan Pearse Open Men's Surf Teams Lachlan Pearse, Hayden Rydberg, Haydn Tierney, Zachary Richter

Open Mixed 5 Person R&R Simone Williams, Charlotte Coleman, Rose Anderson, Dayna

Laurence, David Russell

Adam Howgate, Trystan Precht, Marco Kelsall, Matthew Blair U15 Men's Agua Cameron

U15 Men's Board Race Marco Kelsall

Certificate III in Public Safety (Emergency Communications

U15 Men's Board Relay Marco Kelsall, Caleb Gray, Lachlan Robinson

U15 Men's Board Rescue Adam Howgate, Caleb Gray

U15 Men's Ironman Race Caleb Gray U15 Men's Surf Race Adam Howgate U15 Men's Tube Race Adam Howgate

U15 Mixed 5 Person R&R Matilda Harrop, Hannah McDonald, Carly Russo, Yasmine Davis,

Hannah Carboon

U15 Women's Aqua Cameron Jordan Collins, Olivia Keppell, Lucy Welsh, Jemma Allsopp

U15 Women's Board Relay Kate Cassell-Ashton, Olivia Keppell, Lucy Welsh

U15 Women's Iron Race Olivia Keppell U15 Women's Surf Race Olivia Keppell

U15 Women's Surf Teams Kate Cassell-Ashton, Olivia Keppell, Lucy Welsh, Natalie

> Dimitrakas. Tom McFarlane

U19 Men's 2km Run U19 Men's Belt Race Zachary Richter

Silver Medallists

Open Men's 5 Person R&R Zachary Richter, David Russell, Ian Knight, Jack Caton, James

Lachlan Pearse, Hayden Rydberg, Zachary Richter, Patrick Hough Open Men's Rescue Tube Rescue Simone Williams, Charlotte Coleman, Rose Anderson, Dayna Open Women's 5 Person R&R.

Laurence, Sophie Welsh

U15 Men's Beach Relay Trystan Precht, Matthew Blair, Nathan Cester, Darcy Willmott Caleb Gray, Adam Howgate, Ben Ronec, Lachlan Robinson U15 Men's Surf Teams U15 Men's Tube Race Caleb Gray

U15 Women's Aqua Cameron Kate Cassell-Ashton, Jess Mourney, Caterina Cester, Natalie

Dimitrakas.

U15 Women's Beach Relay Jordan Collins, Jess Mourney, Lucy Welsh, Jemma Allsopp

U15 Women's Beach Sprint Jordan Collins U17 Men's Belt Race **Jack Caton**

U17 Mixed R&R Sophie Welsh, Carly Russo, Jack Caton, Amber Lewis, Freya

Tulloch

U17 Women's Surf Teams Victoria Roadnight, Abby Lethlean, Amber Lewis, Sophie Welsh U19 Men's Surf Teams Zachary Richter, Patrick Hough, Tom McFarlane, Jack Caton

Bronze Medallists

Open Men's Belt Race James Anderson

Open Mixed 6 Person R&R Simone Williams, Charlotte Coleman, Rose Anderson, Davna

Laurence, David Russell, Ian Knight.

U15 Men's Beach Flags Trystan Precht U15 Men's Board Race Caleb Grav U15 Women's Beach Flags Jordan Collins

Natalie Dimitrakas, Kate Cassell-Ashton U15 Women's Board Rescue

U15 Women's Surf Race Lucy Welsh U17 Women's Ski Abby Lethlean

U17 Women's Ski Relay Bella Ford, Victoria Roadnight, Abby Lethlean

U19 Men's Board Rescue Zachary Richter, Patrick Hough

U19 Men's Ironman Race Patrick Hough

U19 Mixed R&R Sophie Welsh, Carly Russo, Jack Caton, Amber Lewis, Freya

Tulloch

Masters State Title Results

Gold Medallists

Men's 110yrs+ Board Relay Jon Ford, Clayton McDonald, Haydn Tierney

Men's 200yrs+ Beach Relay Hugh Condon, Andrew Gibson, Mark Lethlean, David Russell

Men's 30yrs+ Surf Teams Haydn Tierney, Frank Christian

Men's 45yrs+ Surf Race David Russell

Men's 50yrs+ Surf Teams Ian Knight, Frank Christian Women's 40yrs+ Surf Teams Dana Sawyer, Michelle Ford

Silver Medallists

Men's 40yrs+ Surf Race Hugh Condon
Men's 45yrs+ Ironman Race Clayton McDonald
Men's 45yrs+ Surf Teams Jon Ford, David Russell

Women's 40yrs+ 2km Run Michelle Ford

Bronze Medallists

Men's 110yrs+ Taplin Relay Frank Christian, Jon Ford, Haydn Tierney

Men's 30yrs+ Board Race Haydn Tierney Men's 30yrs+ Surf Race Haydn Tierney

Men's 45yrs+ Double Ski Jon Ford, Clayton McDonald

Men's 60yrs+ Beach Sprint Andrew Gibson Men's 60yrs+ Ski Race Andrew Gibson

Women's 170yrs+ Beach Relay Michelle Ford, Dana Sawyer, Vicki Hood, Stacey Lethlean

Women's 40yrs+ Surf Race Michelle Ford Women's 45yrs+ Surf Race Stacey Lethlean

Junior State Title Results

Individual Medal Winners		Team Medals (cont)	
Gold		Gold	
U/11 Girls Iron	Piper Harrison	U/14 Girls Beach Relay	Point Leo (A)
Bronze		U/13 Girls Wade Relay	Point Leo (A)
U/13 Girls Iron	Samantha Howe	Silver	
Team Medals		U/10 Boys Wade Relay	Point Leo (A)
Gold		U/11 Girls Aqua Cameron Relay	Point Leo (B)
U/11 Girls Aqua Cameron Relay	Point Leo (A)	U/12 Girls Surf Teams	Point Leo (B)
U/11 Girls Board Relay	Point Leo (A)	U/12 Boys Board Relay	Point Leo (A)
U/13 Girls Surf Teams	Point Leo (A)	U/14 Girls Aqua Cameron Relay	Point Leo (A)
U/11 Boys Wade Relay	Point Leo (A)	U/14 Boys Beach Relay	Point Leo (A)
U/13 Girls Aqua Cameron Relay	Point Leo (A)	Bronze	
U/13 Girls Beach Relay	Point Leo (A)	U/13 Boys Belt and Reel	Point Leo (A)
U/12 Boys Beach Relay	Point Leo (A)	U/13 Boys Surf Teams	Point Leo (A)
U/10 Girls Wade Relay	Point Leo (B)	U/13 Boys Board Relay	Point Leo (A)

State Team Members

Victorian State Development Team: Samantha Howe, Caleb Gray, Adam Howgate, Olivia Keppell, Lucy

Welsh, Claudia Whitfort.

Victorian State Team: Kate Cassell-Ashton, Jordan Collins, Caleb Gray, Adam Howgate,

Olivia Keppell, Abby Lethlean

LSV Under 15 Development Camp: Romy Lipszyc

Point Leo Swim Classic Results

Honeysuckle Beach Run 4km Male Female

	IVIAIC	remale
Junior	Matt Panton	Gabrielle Beaumont
Open	N/A	Rebecca York
Masters	Adam Davey	Rebecca Barnay
Senior	Mark-Barney Mounsey	Melissa Harrison
_		

Legend Wayne Essing N/A

John Marshall 400m Surf Race

	Male	Female
1st	Sam Sheppard	Harriet Brown
2nd	Bradley Moore	Ellen Gandy
3rd	Scott Prosser	Olivia Keppell

Flinders Hotel Point Leo Swim Classic 1200m

	Male	Female
12-18	Dean Wilson	Isabelle Robinson
19-29	Mark O'Donnell	Harriet Brown
30-39	Haydn Tierney	Cassie Williams-Hill
40-49	Jon Ford	Bizzy Butterworth
50-59	Francis Christian	Melinda Kemp
60-69	Colin Shugg	Maree Tuff
70+	John Olsen	Dorothy Dickey

List of Members

Active (15-18 yrs)	Powell, Miranda	Cargill, Travis	Hipwell, Greg
A`beckett, Camilla	Pressley, Charlotte	Charlton, Jemma	Hood, Vicki
Allsopp, Thomas	Richards, Christopher	Clarke, Nicholas	Hoskins, Richard
Beanland, Louis	Richter, Zachary	Clifford, Amelia	Hough, Emily
Beanland, Minna	Roach, Lachlann	Coleman, Charlotte	Hudson, Clare
Bennett, Mimi	Royal-Hebblewhite, Oscar	Cox, Emily	Humphries, Camilla
Bergin, Julia	Sanders, William	Curtis, Jackson	Humphris, Thomas
Blair, Jack	Saville, Nathan	Dart-Harrison, Melissa	Johnstone, Natalie
Brown, Fraser	Starr, Joshua	Davenport, Lucy	Jones, Morgan
Buchanan, Brittany	Sullivan, William	Davis, Joanne	Keppell, Rodney
Cameron, Isabelle	Thurley, Larissa	Denehy, Thomas	Laurence, Dayna
Cannon, Victoria	Tulloch, Alexandra	Dewhurst, Lucy	Laussen, Stephen
Caton, Jack	Utri, Conor	Doherty, Paul	Lethlean, Mark
Clifford, Simon	Van Leeuwen, Hilary	Doherty, Tara	Lethlean, Stacey
Davis, Kirsten	Ward-Ambler, Emily	Ellis, Richard	Lewis, Tom
Dewhurst, Jack	Welsh, Sophie	Ford, Jon	Lipszyc, Kimberley
Diconza, Jaxon	Young, Harrison	Ford, Michele	Lowther, Jules
Forbes, Isabelle	Young, William	Forrest, Angus	Lyons, Phillip
Gearing, Peter	Active (18yrs and over)	Forrest, Hayden	Malesa, Felicity
Gray, Sarah	Aliotti, Bonnie	Forrest, James	Mantell, Alexandra
Hartley, Lily	Aliotti, Marc	Freeman, Jeremy	McLeod, Darren
Hicks, James	Aliotti, Tom	Garner, Jack	Mealey, Glenn
Hough, Patrick	Ambry, Bree	Garner, Simone	Mezger, Simon
Hudson, Ehren	Anderson, James	Gearing, David	Mollenkopf, Thomas
Lillycrapp, Sarah	Anderson, Rose	Gearing, Sarah	Morrissy, Kym
Lipszyc, Adam	Arnold, Christopher	Gibb, Harriet	Mourney, Bruce
Logan, Dylan	Barry, Nicholas	Gibson, Andrew	Munro, Chris
Mansour, Hillary	Beck, Justine	Gray, Chris	Murray, Tarena
McFarlane, Thomas	Besson, Alex	Greaves, Jav	Norman, Daniel
Neal, Dylan	Bird, Melissa	Harrison, Mark	Northcote, Steven
Panton, Matthew	Brooks, Anthony	Hebblewhite, Augustus	O`Hara, Andrew
Paul-Drevensek, Kate	Buntine, David	Higgins, Rachael	Paton, Blane

Paton, Rowena Pearse, Callum Pearse, Lachlan Puleio, Antonio Roadnight, Sara Roadnight, Scott Royal-Hebblewhite, Michelle

Michelle Russo, Ellie Rydberg, Hayden Sawyer, Dana Sunderland, Kate Tardif, Matthew Taylor, Alison Tierney, Haydn Treadwell, Luke Treadwell, Michael

Utri, Garry Utri, Liam

Van Leeuwen, Philippa Walker, Nelleke Walker, Wendy Wilkins, Grace Wilkins, Maxwell Wilmshurst, Peter Woods, Nicholas Young, James **Associate**

Associate
Abbott, Andrew
Abbott, Sarah
Aliotti, Kim
Anderson, Kelvin
Anderson, Susanne
Arnott, Wesley
Ashton, Steven
Baron, Gabrielle
Barr Smith, Melinda
Barr Smith, Tom
Batchelor, Richard
Beilby, Greg
Bergin, Christine

Bertalli, Cameron Bertalli, Julia Bessell, Daniel Blair-Holt, Ross Borger, Dominic Bounds, Alan Braithwaite, Peter Brown, Martin Buchanan, Craig

Cannon, Graham

Cantwell-Cargill, Lisa

Bergin, Peter

Carboon, Kerri Carr, Robyn Carr, Tony Cassell, Iris Ciszek, Sophie
Clarke, Warren
Coady, Antony
Collins, Gabrielle
Condon, Simone
Cook, Frances
Cook, James
Cook, Kristine
Cousins, Sean
Crowston, Joanna
Crowston, Jonatha

Crowston, Joanna
Crowston, Jonathan
Curtain, Sean
Darvall, Jo
Datnow, Lynne
Davenport, Clyde
Davenport, Deborah
Davenport, Elisabeth
Davenport, Lauren
Davie, Katrina
Edmonds, Amber

Edmonds, William
Feller, Julian
Feller, Toni
Forrest, Andrew
Frampton, Brad
Frampton, Gabrielle
Francis, Adam
Francis, Lucinda
Fraser-Smith, Duncan

Fraser-Smith, Lisa Frazer, Helen Fry, Martin Game, Clare Garner, Katrina Garner, Peter Gayfer, Michael Gearing, Julie Gibb, David Gibson, Jennifer

Gray, Leeonie Grogan, Phillippa Gust, Dean Hammond, Fiona Harrop, Bruce

Harrop, Sheryl Hebblewhite, Mark Hetrel, Samantha Hicks, Matthew

Hipwell, Trina Horwood, Jacqueline

Hicks, Sarah

Hough, Karen Houlihan, Christine Howe, Elizabeth Howe, Richard

Howlett, Christopher Jaeger, Chris

Jenkins, John
Johnstone, Chris
Johnstone, Irene
Jones, Elizabeth
Jones, Matthew
Jones, Paul
Karayan, Alison
Keppell, Alison
King, Drew
Klepfisz, Lisa
Knight, Vicki
Kottek, Wilga

Laidlaw-Wilkins, Fiona Laity, Kim Laity, Mark Langley, Larissa Lansell, Ric

Latchford, Prudence Laurence, Don Laurence, Sandra Leahy, Judith Limb, Charlotte Lipszyc, Jack Lopes, Monique Lowden, Kevin Lowden, Tracey Malesa, Deborah Mansour, Andrew Mason, Sarah-Jo McCraith, Catherine McCraith, Stuart

McGill, Jacinta McGill, Scott McGowan, Reid McGregor, Bernadette McGregor, Peter McKenzie, Hamish

McMahon, Mairead

McDonald, Jacqueline

McNamara, Andrea McNamara, Leigh Menzies, Fiona Mezger, Anna Mollenkopf, Brooke Morrissy, Paul

Morton, Joseph Neal, David Neal. Therese

O`Bryan, Gabrielle O`Shaughnessy, Julia

Olesen, Sally Partridge, Georgina Pickburn, Carolyn Piroch, Michelle

Pope, Tim
Potter, Jamie
Potter, Sally

Reid, Darryl
Renkin, Seri
Rethus, Amanda
Richardson, Gary
Richardson, Nicholas
Richardson, Rachel
Riseley, Brendan
Roach, Amanda
Roach, Stephen
Roadnight, Stephen
Robinson, Kenneth
Ronec, Peter
Ross, Ashley

Ross, Odette

Rumble, Suzanne

Rush, Joanne Russell, Sharon Russo, Karen Rydberg, Christine Saunders, Paul Saunders, Pauline Scales, Michael Senior, Jayne Skinner, Peter Slater, Bronwen Slavin, Cassie Starr, Jane Starr, Michael Stern, Kate Storie, Robin Storie. Thera Summers, Dianne Sunderland, Lynne Sutherland, Gregory

Taylor, Donna Taylor, Gavin Thiele, David Thiele, Sarah Tierney, Louise Treadwell, Anne Tulloch, Jody Upton, Claire Usatoff, Catherine Usatoff, Val

Tabain, Isabelle

Tabain, Nik

Tan, Meileen

Van Leeuwen, Andrew Van Leeuwen, Elizabeth Wagstaff, Barbara Walker, Graham Warby, Alan Ward-Ambler, Ian Ward-Ambler, Penelope Warner, Edward

Warner, Fiona Welsh, Andrew White, Lucy Wiedemeyer, Roy Williams, Janet Williams, Jennifer Williams, Kim Williams, Sandra Cadet Member Andrew, Oliver Beaumont, Gabriella Berry, Amelia Blair, Matthew Blair-Holt, James Brooks, Thomas Brown, Mitchell Cameron, James Carboon, Hannah Cargill, Zane Carson, Elisa Cassell-Ashton, Kate Cester. Caterina Cester, Nathan Clark, Emily Coleman, Max Collins, Jordan Cook, Olivia Davis, Yasmine Dimitrakas, Natalie Dixon, Anna Duncan, Ally Farrar, Angus Ford, Isabella Gayfer, Charley Golvan, Ariel Gray, Anna Gray, Caleb Gust, Emma Harrop, Matilda Hicks, Oliver Higgins, Kate Howgate, Adam Jaeger, Oscar Kelsall, Marco Keppell, Olivia Kotorlis, Kosta Lethlean, Abby Lewis, Amber Lillycrapp, James Machlin, Benjamin Malanina, Alexandra McDonald, Hannah McFarlane, Oliver McGregor, Sarah McLellan, Mikey Morgenthaler, Brittany

Mourney, Jessica

O'Sullivan, William

Nott, Fraser

Paton, Isabel Precht, Trystan Regan, Holly Ricca, Sophie Riseley, Jack Roadnight, Victoria Robinson, Lachlan Robison, Amelia Robison, Hannah Ronec, Ben Russell, Kaitlin Russo, Carly Schofield, Joseph Shannon, Matilda Starr, Emily Sullivan, Nicholas Taylor, Heather Taylor, Lachlan Taylor, Milly Thiele, Benjamin Townshend, Charlotte Tulloch, Freya Turner, Liam Utri, Fergal Walker, Jack Walter, Ella Ward-Ambler, Annie Warren, Suzie

Ward-Ambler, Annie
Warren, Suzie
Welsh, Lucy
Wilkins, Evie
Wilmott, Darcy
Wiseman, Laetitia
Wood, Samuel
Wynn-Pope, Harry
General Member
Arnott-Tan, Anshan

Fry, Elliot

Gayfer, Ally Jaeger, Carla Knight, Dylan Wiedemeyer, Ted **Junior Activity Member** Abbott, Archie Abbott, Elizabeth Adduci, Sarah Adduci, Vincent Allan, Jack Allsopp, Abby Allsopp, Jemma Anderson, Lara Anderson, Maxim Andrew, Lucy Andrews, Billy Andrews, Tevah Arnott-Tan, Anwyn

Atkins, Harry

Austin, Isabella

Baillieu. Ned Baillieu, Will Barnes, Bridget Barnes, Ingrid Barr Smith, Tom Jnr Barr Smith, Xanthe Bartlett. Thomas Bartlett, William Bates, Sara Beadle, Daniel Beadle, Emily Bede, Frederick Bede, Harry Bede, Rupert Beilby, Jack Beilby, Scott Bennett, Hugo Bennett, Sacha Berenger, Alice Berenger, Henry

Bertalli, Joseph Bessell, Charlie Bessell, Emilie Bessell, Samuel Black, Ben Blackney, Sophie Blair-Holt, Isabelle Bloom, Abigail Bloom, Jessica Bloom, Maxwell Borger, Felix Borger, Luca Brayshaw, George Brooks, Kate Brown, Angus Buntine. Annie

Burford, Monika Caine, Jackson Cameron, Thomas Campbell, Freddie Campbell, Lucy Cannon, Angus Carboon, Olivia Carey, Vivienne Cargill, Zali Carmichael, Henry Carmichael, Millie Carr, Emily Carr, Vanessa Carson, Hugo Carter, Katharine Cassell-Ashton, Charli Cassell-Ashton, Georgia Clark, Robert Clark, Stephanie

Clark, William

Clarke, Brynee

Clarke, Keely Clarke, Nathaniel Coady, Charlie Coady, Lilli Coady, Lulu Coady, Tess Cock, Charlotte Cock, Sebastian Coles. Zarabelle Collins, Chaise Collins, Tristan Condon, Daniel Condon, Emily Cook, Asha Cousins, Audrey Cousins, Darcy Cracknell, Finn Cracknell, Joshua Cracknell, Lachlann Crofts, Ella

Crofts, Ruby Crosby, Jayden Crothers, Piper Crothers. Sasha Crowe, Tom Crowston, James Crowston, Zoe Cullen, Darcy Cullen, Rachael Cullen, Sarah Cullen, Sophie Cullum, Jay Curtain, Benjamin Curtain, India Darvall, Elektra Darvall. Mixie

Datnow-Jamieson, Daniel Deroche-Jarrett, Fox Dewhurst, Joshua Dimitrakas, Tegan Dixon, Orlando Dixon, Poppy Doherty, Ellie Doherty, Jesse Doherty, Joshua Ducos, Gabriel Ducos, Theo Duff, Lawson Duggan, Allanah Duggan, Isabel Duggan, Joseph Ebeyer, Jessica Ebeyer, Laura Edmonds, Campbell Edmonds, Finley Edmonds, Kipling Elwin, Tasmin

Enders, Charlie Enders, Lily Enders, Miles Falcon, Oliver Feller, Annalise Fogarty, Phoebe Foller, Jasper Foller, Jessika Ford, Harvey Ford, Nicholas Frampton, Daniel Frampton, Georgia Frampton, Luke Francis, India Francis, Sebastian Fraser-Smith, Duncan Fraser-Smith, Georgia Fraser-Smith. Rebecca Freeman, Ella Freeman, Oscar Fry, Hugo Fry, Mietta Fry, Stella Gadd, Cooper Gadd, Morgan Gadd, Riley Gallagher, Mia Game, Bianca Gayfer, Millie Genis, Jasmine Gibson, Kate Gibson, Rebecca Godby, Francesca Godby, Yvette Golding, Grace Goninon, Melanie Gouderjaan, Miles Grant, Lucy Gray, Alistair Gray, Hollee Gray, Jeremy Gray, Lucy Gregory, Will Gust, Fraser Handley, Fox Handley, Grace Hannemann, Harvey Hannemann, Ned Harrison, Marlon Harrison, Piper Harrop, Jarvis Harrop, Mairead Hartley, Jessica Hearn, Louis

Hellmann, Kasper

Hellmann, Mietta

Hemphill, Matthew

Hemphill, Thomas Hicks, Edward Hipwell, Bridie Hipwell, Connor Hipwell, Darby Holckner, Jed Hooper, Mitchell Hooper, Yolunda Hoskins, Ben Hoskins, Charlotte Hoskins, Oscar Hourn, Mia Howe, Madison Howe, Samantha Howlett, Finn Howlett, Joshua Iles, Jaimee Irivng, Joshua Jenkins, Elizabeth Jenkins, Rose Johnson, Chelsea Johnson, Chloe Johnston, Amelia Johnston, Oliver Johnston, Owen Johnston, Toby Johnston, William Jones, Annabelle Jones, Charlotte Joyce, Amber Joyce, Hayley Karayan, Jack Karayan, Sophie Keating, Thomas Kelly, Lilly Kelly, Matilda Kelly, Ruby Kent, Beau Kesik, Emma Kiellerup, Saffi King, India King, Scotlan Klok, James Kluckow, Nicholas Kluckow, Thomas Knight, Brodie Koco, Ruby Kogler, Amelia Kotorlis, Vanna Kyriacou, Liana Kyriacou, Mikayla Kyriacou, Oscar Laity, Eliza Laity, Jessica Laity, Olivia Lambon, Olive

Langley, Grace

Langley, Jack Langley, Tom Lansell, Giselle Lansell, Helena Laussen, Ella Laussen, William Le Brocq North, Alexandra Lempriere, Henri Lempriere, Max Lempriere, Thomas Lillywhite, Charlotte Lipszyc, Romy Lipton, Arielle Lowman, Max Lucas, Charlie Lucas, India Macaulay, Alexandra Machlin, Jonathan Machlin, Julia Macpherson Smith, Georgia Macpherson Smith, Lachlan Magee, Harriet Main, Eliza Marcel, Henry McDonald, Benjamin McDonald, Liam McGill, Joel McGill, Layla McGowan, Charlie McGowan, Louis McGregor, Annabelle McKenzie, Alasdair McKenzie, Euan McLean, Billy McLean, Joshua McLean, Matilda McLellan, Bailey McMurrick, James McMurrick, William McNamara, Charles McNamara, Georgia McNamara, Jack McNamara, Kate Mealey, Blake Mealey, Jevvan Menzies-King, Alice Menzies-King, Charlotte Mereszko, Chloe Mereszko, Grace Mezger, Harry Mezger, Max Middendorp, Joshua Middendorp, Marcus Millar, Nathaniel Mitchell, Alannah Mitchell, Dan Mitchell, Ebony

Mitchell. Joshua Mitchell. Tom Mold, Mariah Morgenthaler, Ky Morrison-Woolcock, Harrison Morrissy, Lucy Morrissy, Maxwell Morton, James Morton, Matthew Mourney, Max Mourney, Sam Murdoch, Ned Murdoch, Ruby Murdoch, Scarlet Murray, Pia Nastri, Oscar Neal, Lily Neville-Smith, Camilla Newman, Mack Newton, Molly Newton, Poppy Nikakis, Chloe Northcote, Giselle Nott, Andrew Noxon, Felix O'Connor, Lachlan O'Hara, Anais O'Hara, Charles O'Hara, Sophie Oakes, Tahlia Oakes, Trilby Osborn, Rosie Page. Emilie Parkinson, Geena Paton, James Pearce, James Perry, Summer Pitts, Zane Pope, Brodie Pope, Chloe Potter, Jack Potter, Max Potter, Zoe Puleio, Francesca Puleio, Lucia Reid, Hailey Reynolds, Ben Reynolds, Luke Richards, Edward Richardson, Jacob Richardson, Jessica Richardson, Samuel Roach, Henry Robinson, Caitlin Robinson, Kate

Robinson, Luke

Robinson, Mitchell Rodwell, Ella Roe, Jasper Romari, Jasper Ronec, Brittany Ross, Amelia Ross, Greta Ross, Hudson Ross, Paige Russell, Jemima Russell, Mietta Ryan, Ella Salmon, Ella-Grace Salmon, Wilhem Saunders, Anna Saunders, Emma Saunders, Molly Scales, Darcy Scales, Mackinley Scales, Tully Scoffern, Skye Scoffern, Tulle Searle, Callum Searle, Lucy Senior Skinner, Tim Shannon, Isabella Sheehan, Harrison Slipais, Lucas Smith, Fergus Staley, Amelia Stapleton, Jessica Starr, Heidi Stigter, Emile Storie, Bryce Storie, Nathan

Stuart, Hudson

Stubbings, Atlanta

Stubbings, Harry Stubbings, Indianna Suetin, Alexei Suetin, Maria Sullivan, Harry Sutherland, Eloise Sutherland, Thomas Svarychevski, Aiden Svarychevski, Mikayla Swaney, Edward Swaney, Ella Swaney, Lachlan Sweetman, Brooke Tabain, Casper Tabain, Gabriella Tabain, Sebastian Taylor, Ella Taylor, Isabel Taylor, Jacob Taylor, Jai Taylor, Jemma Thacore, Indira Thacore, Maya Thiele, Jonathon Thornton, Liam Tobias-Hoyle, Benjamin Totora, Adam Townshend, Lily Townshend-White, Zoe Tyrrell, Nicky Upton Jones, Grace Upton Jones, Kate Upton Jones, Rose Usatoff, Luke Usatoff, Matthew Usatoff, Sophie

Utri, Aisling

van de Merwe, Anna van de Merwe, Max Walker, Amelia Walsh, Emily Walsh, James Ward-Ambler, Nicholas Ward-Ambler, Sarah Warner, Bella Warner, Sam Warner, Zoe Watson, Ruby Welsh, Callum Wetenhall, Eleanor White, Billy Whitehouse, Liam Whitfort, Claudia Wicks, Isaac Wicks, Oliver Wiedemeyer, Stella Williams, April Williams, Archie Williams, Hugo Williams, Riley Wilmshurst, Aden Wilmshurst, Maya Wilson, Marnie Wiseman, James Wolton, Henry Wolton, Matilda Woods, Bodhi Woods, Marley Wrangles, Brianna Wynn-Pope, Hamish Life Member Barnes, Andrew Cahill, Murray

Utri. Ciara

Caraher, Michael Ellis (SNR), Richard Ford, Peter Forsyth, John Gibson, Peter Horwood, Brian Horwood, John James, Geoffrey Jeffrey, Maxwell Kidd, Edward McDonald, Clayton McKellar, Garry Morgenthaler, Stephen Murray, Ronald Randall, Gary Roberts, Donald Rydberg, Garry Treadwell, Alfred Waters, Geoffrey Whillans, Peter Woodhouse, Robert **Long Service** Brawn, Tamara-Leigh Gooding, Khali Knight, Ian Russell, David Tierney, Mark Williams, Anthony Williams, Simone **Reserve Active** Anstee, Steven Bunting-Frame, Matthew Christian, Francis Condon, Hugh Marshall, Benjamin







